
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Corporation of the City of Sault Ste. Marie
Council Correspondence

 
October 2, 2020

Pages

1. Algoma Public Health 2 - 144

September 23, 2020 Agenda and Package

2. Association of Municipalities of Ontario 145 - 151

Update September 23, 2020•

Update September 29, 2020•

Update September 30, 2020•

3. Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities 152 - 153

Motion concerning Starlink Program

4. Local Planning Appeal Tribunal 154 - 154

Appeal regarding 22 MacDonald Avenue

5. Canadian Labour Congress 155 - 158

September 2020 – Report to Labour Councils

6. Nogdawindamin Family and Community Services 159 - 159

Correspondence regarding Annual Alternative Care Appreciation Event



ENT : BOARD MEMBERS APH EXECUTIVE
Lee Mason - BOH Chair Dr. Marlene Spruyt - Medical Officer of Health/CEO
Ed Pearce - F&AC Chair Dr. Jennifer Loo - AMOH & Director of Health Protection
Deborah Graystone - Gov. Chair Justin Pino - CFO /Director of Operations

Antoniette Tomie - Director of Human Resources
Louise Caicco Tett Laurie Zeppa - Director of Health Promotion & Prevention
Sally Hagman Tania Caputo - Board Secretary
Micheline Hatfield
Dr. Heather O'Brien
Brent Rankin
Matthew Scott

* L. Mason

1.0 Meeting Called to Order L. Mason
a. 

2.0 Adoption of Agenda L. Mason
Moved:

Seconded:

3.0 Delegations / Presentations
a. Health Equity - Basic Income Guarantee L. Zeppa
b. Basic Income resolution

4.0 Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting L. Mason

5.0 Business Arising from Minutes L. Mason

* Meeting held during the provincially declared emergency

Board of Health Meeting 
AGENDA

September 23, 2020 at 5:00 pm
Video/Teleconference │   Algoma Community Room

Dr. Patricia Avery 

Proceedings are being recorded via Webex and will be available for public viewing.

Declaration of Conflict of Interest

RESOLUTION

THAT the Board of Health agenda dated September 23, 2020 be approved as presented.

RESOLUTION

THAT the June 24, 2020 Board of Health Minutes, August 18, 2020 Special Meeting Minutes 
and September 2, 2020 Special Meeting Minutes be approved as presented.

Page 2 of 159



6.0 Reports to the Board
a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer Reports M. Spruyt

i. 
ii. Public Health System Evaluation - for information only

Moved: E. Pearce
Seconded: A. Kappes

b. Finance and Audit 
i. E. Pearce
ii. COVID Costs

Moved:
Seconded:

ii. J. Pino

Seconded:

iii J. Pino

Seconded:

c. Governance

i. D. Graystone

ii. 02-05-015 Conflict of Interest - Policy

iv. 02-05-035 Continuing Education for Board Members

iii. 02-05-080 Performance Evaluation for MOH CEO - Policy

v. 02-05-086 Sponsorship of Charitable Organizations

Moved:
Seconded:

MOH Report, September 2020

RESOLUTION

THAT the report of the Medical Officer of Health and CEO for September 2020 be adopted as 
presented.

Governance Committee Chair Report

Financial Statements

RESOLUTION

THAT the unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending July 31, 2020 be approved as 
presented.

Infant Development Annual Reconciliation

Levy Reimbursement Briefing Note

THAT the Board of Health receives and approves the Transfer Payment Annual Reconciliation 
for the Infant Development program as presented.

RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves Policy 02-05-015 Conflict of Interest as 
presented, and;

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves Policy 02-05-035 Continuing Education 
for Board Members as presented, and;

THAT the Governance Committee Chair report for September 2020 be accepted as presented.

Page 3 of 159



7.0 New Business/General Business L. Mason

8.0 Correspondence L. Mason
a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

g.

9.0 Items for Information L. Mason
a.

10.0 L. Mason

11.0 L. Mason

12.0 L. Mason
Resolutions resulting from in-camera meeting.

Emails addressed to the Board of Health regarding the direction to mask in indoor public 
places. 

Letter to the Prime Minister of Canada, The Deputy Prime Minister and the Minister of 
Finance from Renfrew County and District Health Unit regarding Basic Income for Income 
Security during Covid-19 Pandemic and Beyond dated July 16, 2020.  

Addendum

Letter to the Minister of Health and Minister of Justice and Attorney General of Canada 
from Chatham-Kent Public Health regarding The Decriminalization of Personal 
Possession of Illicit Drugs dated July 30, 2020.

Letter to the Prime Minister of Canada, The Deputy Prime Minister and the Minister of 
Finance from Chatham-Kent Public Health regarding Basic Income for Income Security 
during Covid-19 Pandemic and Beyond dated July 27, 2020.  

Letter to the Minister of the Association of Local Public Health Agencies regarding 
Protecting Children and Youth from Dangers of Vaping dated July 9 2020.  

Letter to the Prime Minister of Canada, The Deputy Prime Minister and the Minister of 
Finance from Porcupine Health Unit regarding Basic Income for Income Security during 
Covid-19 Pandemic and Beyond dated June 29, 2020.  

Letter to the Prime Minister of Canada, The Deputy Prime Minister and the Minister of 
Finance from Peterborough Public Health regarding Basic Income for Income Security 
during Covid-19 Pandemic and Beyond dated June 25, 2020.  

Letter to the Deputy Premier, Minister of Health and Long-Term Care from Simcoe 
Muskoka District Health Unit regarding Health Unit Funding During COVID-19, dated 
August 19, 2020.

In-Camera 

Open Meeting - 7:03 pm

For discussion of labour relations and employee negotiations, matters about identifiable 
individuals, adoption of in camera minutes, security of the property of the board, litigation 
or potential litigation.

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves Policy 02-05-080 Performance 
Evaluation for MOH CEO as presented, and;

THAT the Governance Committee has reviewed and approves Policy 02-05-086 Sponsorship 
of Charitable Organizations as presented.

Page 4 of 159



13.0 Announcements / Next Committee Meetings: L. Mason

Finance & Audit Committee Meeting
October 14, 2020 @ 5:00 pm
Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

Board of Health Meeting

Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

Governance Committee Meeting

Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

14.0 Evaluation L. Mason

15.0 Adjournment L. Mason
Moved: P. Avery

THAT the Board of Health meeting adjourns.

November 18, 2020 @ 5:00 pm

RESOLUTION

October 28, 2020 @ 5:00 pm

Page 5 of 159



September 23, 2020

BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING

SSM Algoma Community Room - Video/Teleconference

www.algomapublichealth.com

Page 6 of 159



11. . Call to OrderCall to Order

22. . Adoption of AgendaAdoption of Agenda

a. Basic Income Presentation

33. . Delegation/PresentationsDelegation/Presentations

a. Jun 24, 2020 BOH Meeting Minutes

b. Aug 18, 2020 BOH Special Meeting Minutes

44. . Adoption of MinutesAdoption of Minutes

i. MOH Report, September 2020

a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer
Report

i. Financial Statements ending July 31, 2020

ii. COVID Costs

iii. Infant Development Program Annual
Reconcilliation

b. Finance and Audit

i. Governance Chair Report September 2020

ii. 02-05-015 - Conflict of Interest Policy

iii. 02-05-035 - Continuing Education for Board

c. Governance

ii. Public Health System Evaluation

iv. Levy Reimbursement Briefing Note

66. . Reports to BoardReports to Board

a. Declaration of Conflict of Interest

a. September 23, BOH Meeting Agenda

b. Basic income resolution

c. Sep 2, 2020 BOH Special Meeting Minutes

55. . Business ArisingBusiness Arising

Meeting Book - September 23, 2020 Board of Health MeetingMeeting Book - September 23, 2020 Board of Health Meeting

TABLE OF CONTENTSTABLE OF CONTENTS

Page 5

Page 9

Page 31

Page 33

Page 38

Page 40

Page 42

Page 46

Page 90

Page 100

Page 101

Page 108

Page 110

Page 112

Page 115

Page 2 of 139

Page 7 of 159



Members Policy

iv. 02-05-080 - Performance Evaluation for MOH
CEO Policy

a. Letter to the Prime Minister of Canada, The Deputy
Prime Minister and the Minister of Finance from
Peterborough Public Health regarding Basic Income
for Income Security during Covid-19 Pandemic and
Beyond dated June 25, 2020.

b. Letter to the Prime Minister of Canada, The Deputy
Prime Minister and the Minister of Finance from
Porcupine Health Unit regarding Basic Income for
Income Security during Covid-19 Pandemic and
Beyond dated June 29, 2020.

c. Letter to the Prime Minister of Canada, The Deputy
Prime Minister and the Minister of Finance from
Renfrew County and District Health Unit regarding
Basic Income for Income Security during Covid-19
Pandemic and Beyond dated July 16, 2020.

d. Letter to the Prime Minister of Canada, The Deputy
Prime Minister and the Minister of Finance from
Chatham-Kent Public Health regarding Basic Income
for Income Security during Covid-19 Pandemic and
Beyond dated July 27, 2020.

e. Letter to the Minister of Health and Minister of Justice
and Attorney General of Canada from Chatham-Kent
Public Health regarding The Decriminalization of
Personal Possession of Illicit Drugs dated July 30,
2020.

88. . CorrespondenceCorrespondence

99. . Items for InformationItems for Information

v. 02-05-086 - Sponsorship of Charitable
Organizations Policy

77. . New BusinessNew Business

f. Letter to the Deputy Premier, Minister of Health and
Long-Term Care from Simcoe Muskoka District
Health Unit regarding Health Unit Funding During
COVID-19, dated August 19, 2020.

a. Letter to the Minister of the Association of Local
Public Health Agencies regarding Protecting Children
and Youth from Dangers of Vaping dated July 9 2020.

1010. . AddendumAddendum

1111. . In-CameraIn-Camera

Page 116

Page 118

Page 120

Page 122

Page 124

Page 132

Page 134

Page 136

Page 138

Page 3 of 139

Page 8 of 159



1414. . AnnouncementsAnnouncements

1212. . Open MeetingOpen Meeting

1313. . Resolutions Resulting From In-CameraResolutions Resulting From In-Camera

a. Next Meetings

1515. . AdjournmentAdjournment

Page 4 of 139

Page 9 of 159



ENT : BOARD MEMBERS APH EXECUTIVE
Lee Mason - BOH Chair Dr. Marlene Spruyt - Medical Officer of Health/CEO
Ed Pearce - F&AC Chair Dr. Jennifer Loo - AMOH & Director of Health Protection
Deborah Graystone - Gov. Chair Justin Pino - CFO /Director of Operations

Antoniette Tomie - Director of Human Resources
Louise Caicco Tett Laurie Zeppa - Director of Health Promotion & Prevention
Sally Hagman Tania Caputo - Board Secretary
Micheline Hatfield
Dr. Heather O'Brien
Brent Rankin
Matthew Scott

* L. Mason

1.0 Meeting Called to Order L. Mason
a. 

2.0 Adoption of Agenda L. Mason
Moved:

Seconded:

3.0 Delegations / Presentations
a. Health Equity - Basic Income Guarantee L. Zeppa
b. Basic Income resolution

4.0 Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting L. Mason

5.0 Business Arising from Minutes L. Mason

* Meeting held during the provincially declared emergency

Board of Health Meeting 
AGENDA

September 23, 2020 at 5:00 pm
Video/Teleconference │   Algoma Community Room

Dr. Patricia Avery 

Proceedings are being recorded via Webex and will be available for public viewing.

Declaration of Conflict of Interest

RESOLUTION

THAT the Board of Health agenda dated September 23, 2020 be approved as presented.

RESOLUTION

THAT the June 24, 2020 Board of Health Minutes, August 18, 2020 Special Meeting Minutes 
and September 2, 2020 Special Meeting Minutes be approved as presented.

Page 5 of 139

Page 10 of 159



6.0 Reports to the Board
a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer Reports M. Spruyt

i. 
ii. Public Health System Evaluation - for information only

Moved: E. Pearce
Seconded: A. Kappes

b. Finance and Audit 
i. E. Pearce
ii. COVID Costs

Moved:
Seconded:

ii. J. Pino

Seconded:

iii J. Pino

Seconded:

c. Governance

i. D. Graystone

ii. 02-05-015 Conflict of Interest - Policy

iv. 02-05-035 Continuing Education for Board Members

iii. 02-05-080 Performance Evaluation for MOH CEO - Policy

v. 02-05-086 Sponsorship of Charitable Organizations

Moved:
Seconded:

MOH Report, September 2020

RESOLUTION

THAT the report of the Medical Officer of Health and CEO for September 2020 be adopted as 
presented.

Governance Committee Chair Report

Financial Statements

RESOLUTION

THAT the unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending July 31, 2020 be approved as 
presented.

Infant Development Annual Reconciliation

Levy Reimbursement Briefing Note

THAT the Board of Health receives and approves the Transfer Payment Annual Reconciliation 
for the Infant Development program as presented.

RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION

RESOLUTION

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves Policy 02-05-015 Conflict of Interest as 
presented, and;

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves Policy 02-05-035 Continuing Education 
for Board Members as presented, and;

THAT the Governance Committee Chair report for September 2020 be accepted as presented.

Page 6 of 139

Page 11 of 159



7.0 New Business/General Business L. Mason

8.0 Correspondence L. Mason
a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

g.

9.0 Items for Information L. Mason
a.

10.0 L. Mason

11.0 L. Mason

12.0 L. Mason
Resolutions resulting from in-camera meeting.

Emails addressed to the Board of Health regarding the direction to mask in indoor public 
places. 

Letter to the Prime Minister of Canada, The Deputy Prime Minister and the Minister of 
Finance from Renfrew County and District Health Unit regarding Basic Income for Income 
Security during Covid-19 Pandemic and Beyond dated July 16, 2020.  

Addendum

Letter to the Minister of Health and Minister of Justice and Attorney General of Canada 
from Chatham-Kent Public Health regarding The Decriminalization of Personal 
Possession of Illicit Drugs dated July 30, 2020.

Letter to the Prime Minister of Canada, The Deputy Prime Minister and the Minister of 
Finance from Chatham-Kent Public Health regarding Basic Income for Income Security 
during Covid-19 Pandemic and Beyond dated July 27, 2020.  

Letter to the Minister of the Association of Local Public Health Agencies regarding 
Protecting Children and Youth from Dangers of Vaping dated July 9 2020.  

Letter to the Prime Minister of Canada, The Deputy Prime Minister and the Minister of 
Finance from Porcupine Health Unit regarding Basic Income for Income Security during 
Covid-19 Pandemic and Beyond dated June 29, 2020.  

Letter to the Prime Minister of Canada, The Deputy Prime Minister and the Minister of 
Finance from Peterborough Public Health regarding Basic Income for Income Security 
during Covid-19 Pandemic and Beyond dated June 25, 2020.  

Letter to the Deputy Premier, Minister of Health and Long-Term Care from Simcoe 
Muskoka District Health Unit regarding Health Unit Funding During COVID-19, dated 
August 19, 2020.

In-Camera 

Open Meeting - 7:03 pm

For discussion of labour relations and employee negotiations, matters about identifiable 
individuals, adoption of in camera minutes, security of the property of the board, litigation 
or potential litigation.

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves Policy 02-05-080 Performance 
Evaluation for MOH CEO as presented, and;

THAT the Governance Committee has reviewed and approves Policy 02-05-086 Sponsorship 
of Charitable Organizations as presented.

Page 7 of 139

Page 12 of 159



13.0 Announcements / Next Committee Meetings: L. Mason

Finance & Audit Committee Meeting
October 14, 2020 @ 5:00 pm
Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

Board of Health Meeting

Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

Governance Committee Meeting

Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

14.0 Evaluation L. Mason

15.0 Adjournment L. Mason
Moved: P. Avery

THAT the Board of Health meeting adjourns.

November 18, 2020 @ 5:00 pm

RESOLUTION

October 28, 2020 @ 5:00 pm

Page 8 of 139

Page 13 of 159



Build Back Better: The case for basic income 

Deborah Antonello, Health Equity Public Health Nurse
Lisa O’Brien, Public Health Dietitian

September 23, 2020 
Page 9 of 139

Page 14 of 159



What is basic or guaranteed income?

Basic or Guaranteed Income is a 
regular, reliable distribution of 
money to individuals or families to 
help ensure everyone has an 
income sufficient to meet their 
basic needs.

Guaranteed 
Income

Guaranteed Income

Pasma, C., and Mulvale, J. Income Security for All Canadians: Understanding Guaranteed Income. Ottawa: Basic Income Earth Network Canada, 2009.
Page 10 of 139

Page 15 of 159



Why is basic income a public health issue?

Health
Income

Poverty

Page 11 of 139

Page 16 of 159



Public health has a mandate for health equity

2018: Revised Ontario 
Public Health Standards
Foundational and Program 
Standards:

• Population Health 
Assessment 

• Health Equity 
• Effective Public Health 

Practice, 

• Emergency Management 

Goal:
“Public health practice results in 
decreased health inequities
such that everyone has 
equal opportunities 
for optimal health and 
can attain their full health 
potential
without disadvantage
due to social position or other 
socially determined 
circumstances”

Page 12 of 139

Page 17 of 159



The Public Health Picture

Improve 
Health Equity

Address Social 
Determinants 
of Health

Public Health
Mandate

Population 
Health
Approach

Reduce 
Health 
Inequities

Page 13 of 139

Page 18 of 159



Social determinants of health (SDOH)

• Access to health services 
• Culture, race, and ethnicity
• Disability
• Early childhood development 
• Education, literacy, and skills 
• Employment, job security, and working conditions 
• Food insecurity 
• Housing 
• Income and income distribution  
• Indigenous status 
• Personal health practices and resiliency 
• Physical environments 
• Sexual orientation and attraction
• Social inclusion/exclusion 
• Social support networks

Income

Page 14 of 139

Page 19 of 159



Income is a primary driver of health outcomes

• Low income is linked to poor health outcomes 
• People in Northern Ontario have poorer health outcomes, compared to 

Southern Ontario, due to limitations to social and economic opportunities 

• Low income increases the risk for preventable conditions, including 
chronic diseases, injuries, suicide and mental illness

• Income determines the quality of other social determinants of health, 
such as food security, housing, and other basic necessities of life

Braveman & Gottlieb (2014) .The social determinants of health: it’s time to consider the causes of the causes.
Health Quality Ontario (2018). Northern Ontario Health Equity Strategy.
Public Health Agency of Canada (PHAC) Pan-Canadian Public Health Network; Ottawa, Canada: 2018. Key Health Inequalities in Canada: A National Portrait; p. 437
Raphael, D. (2009). The Social Determinants of Health: Canadian Perspectives, p.12 Page 15 of 139

Page 20 of 159



Poverty in Canada and Algoma

Pre-COVID-19 Poverty Rates

• 14.2% of Canadians, 
• 13.7 % of Ontarians and 

Canada’s COVID-19 stats (summer 2020)

13.7% 
unemployment
3 million jobs lost
2.5 million < hours
24 million CERB 

16.1% of Algoma 
residents live in low 
income

https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2016/dp-pd/prof/index.cfm?Lang=E (accessed September 2, 2020)
https://globalnews.ca/news/7029601/canada-may-unemployment-rate/
https://www.canada.ca/en/services/benefits/ei/claims-report.html

Page 16 of 139

Page 21 of 159

https://globalnews.ca/news/7029601/canada-may-unemployment-rate/
https://www.canada.ca/en/services/benefits/ei/claims-report.html


Snapshot of low income in Algoma, Pre-COVID-19

Census Profile. 2016 Census of Canada Statistics Canada. Canadian Community Health Survey [2015-2016])
Buajitti E, Chiodo S, Watson T, Kornas K, Bornbaum C, Henry D, Rosella LC. Ontario atlas of adult mortality, 1992-2015, 
Version 2.0: Trends in Public Health Units. Toronto, ON: Population Health Analytics Lab; 2018.
Algoma Public Health. Community Health Profile, 2018. Sault Ste. Marie (ON): Algoma Public Health; 2018.

18,500 people
10,000 
households

17.6% lone 
parent 
families

12.4% of 
households

40.2% have not 
completed 
post-secondary

25% 
children 
under 6

22% 
youth 
under 18

13.8% 
Indigenous

23.7% aged 65+

Page 17 of 139

Page 22 of 159



Basic Income: It’s 
not a new idea!

Page 18 of 139

Page 23 of 159



Page 19 of 139

Page 24 of 159



Why basic income?
• Despite Canada’s poverty reduction strategy, 14.2% of Canadians still live in 

poverty (pre-COVID-19)
• Income security is a foundational element to any poverty reduction strategy

• Basic income increases health status, resulting in less strain on the health 
care system

• Participants in Ontario’s 2017 pilot study reported less-frequent visits to health care 
providers and hospital emergency rooms

• Global health crises (e.g. SARS,COVID-19, future pandemics) cause significant 
economic, social, and political disruption, especially for priority 
populations:

• Immigrants, refugees, and other newcomers account for nearly 44% of all COVID-19 
cases in Ontario 

https://www12.statcan.gc.ca/census-recensement/2016/dp-pd/prof/index.cfm?Lang=E (accessed September 2, 2020)
Madhav N, Oppenheim B, Gallivan M, et al. Pandemics: Risks, Impacts, and Mitigatione. Disease Control Priorities: Improving Health and Reducing Poverty. 3rd edition. 
Ferdosi et al. (March 2020). Southern Ontario’s Basic Income Experience. Available from https://labourstudies.mcmaster.ca/news/access-southern-ontario2019s-basic-income-experience-
report#:~:text=The%20self%2Dreported%20outcomes%20of,in%20today's%20precarious%20labour%20market. 
Guttmann et al. COVID-19 in Immigrants, Refugees and Other Newcomers in Ontario: Characteristics of Those Tested and Those Confirmed Positive, as of June 13, 2020. Toronto, ON: ICES; 2020. Page 20 of 139

Page 25 of 159

https://labourstudies.mcmaster.ca/news/access-southern-ontario2019s-basic-income-experience-report#:%7E:text=The%20self%2Dreported%20outcomes%20of,in%20today's%20precarious%20labour%20market


Does basic income make a difference?

• Canada already has forms of guaranteed income -- cash transfers 
from government – Canada Child Benefit, Old Age Security and the 
Guaranteed Income Supplement

• Guaranteed annual income programs have been shown to have 
positive impacts on physical and mental health

“For a significant number of participants, basic income purportedly proved to be transformational, 
fundamentally reshaping their living standards as well as their sense of self-worth and hope for a 
better future” (Southern Ontario’s Basic Income Experience Report, 2020)

McIntyre et al. (2016). Impact of a guaranteed annual income program on Canadian seniors' physical, mental and functional health. Can J Public Health. 2016;107(2)
Cheng et al. The Health Implications of Social Pensions: Evidence from China's New Rural Pension Scheme. IZA Discussion Paper No. 9621,
Brown E.M. & Tarasuk, V. Money speaks: Reductions in severe food insecurity follow the Canada Child Benefit. Preventive Medicine. 2019; 129.
Chen et al. (2019). Does money relieve depression? Evidence from social pension expansions in China. Soc Sci Med. 
Ferdosi et al. (March 2020). Southern Ontario’s Basic Income Experience.

Page 21 of 139

Page 26 of 159



The Canada Emergency Response Benefit (CERB)

• A crisis-driven support program, CERB provides temporary income 
support to workers who have stopped working because of COVID-19

• CERB represents a healthy public policy opportunity
• Evolving CERB into a basic income program for Canadians would improve the 

health of all Canadians

Page 22 of 139

Page 27 of 159



Public health’s role

Population 
Health
Approach

Upstream
. 

Midstream

Downstream

Page 23 of 139

Page 28 of 159



Moving Upstream

LOW 
INCOME

UpstreamDownstream
Midstream

About changing the effects of 
the causes.

Ensure that public health 
programs are accessible to 
low income people

About changing the causes.

Link low-income clients 
with social assistance or 
back-to-work programs, 
completing income tax 
forms

About diminishing the causes of 
the causes.

Advocate for living wage policies, 
wage capping, progressive taxation, 
Basic income

Page 24 of 139

Page 29 of 159



Moving Upstream …
The example of food insecurity

No 
More

Page 25 of 139

Page 30 of 159



Shift the focus from food charity to income
Food Charity (soup kitchen, food bank) Adequate Income

Temporary hunger relief 
(food insecurity does not go away)

Addresses the root cause of food insecurity 
(not enough money)

Limited reach 
(only about 20% use food banks)

Household can choose how, when and what 
food to buy.

Limited operating hours
Restrict number of visits and amount of food 

Cannot meet daily needs for nutritious food

Undermines people’s dignity
Preserves dignity when people have enough 
money to buy food. 

Excuses decision makers from ensuring the basic 
right to food. 

Ensures the basic right to food.

Ontario Dietitians in Public Health (ODPH). Position Statement and Recommendations on Responses to Food Insecurity. 2020
PROOF (Food Insecurity Policy Research). Relationship between food banks and food insecurity in Canada. Toronto, ON; 2019. 
Daily Bread Food Bank. Hunger Lives Here: Risks and Challenges Faced by Food Bank Clients During COVID-19, 2020. Toronto, ON. Page 26 of 139

Page 31 of 159



Food should be a basic human right
… yet many struggle 

Food Insecure Households in Canada

People more vulnerable to food insecurity:
• Female lone parent households (children under 18)
• Low wage earners
• Employed in part-time, short-term, ‘precarious’ work
• Main income from social assistance or employment insurance
• Renters
• People who identify as Indigenous or Black

Pre- COVID-19 During COVID-19 (May 2020)

10.5% 14.6%

Statistics Canada. Food insecurity during the COVID-19 pandemic, May 2020. Ottawa, ON: Statistics Canada; 2020. 
PROOF (Food Insecurity Policy Research). Household food insecurity in Canada [webpage online]. Toronto, ON: Food Insecurity Policy Research (PROOF) [updated 2018 Feb 22].
Ontario Dietitians in Public Health (ODPH). Position Statement and Recommendations on Responses to Food Insecurity. 2020

Page 27 of 139

Page 32 of 159



It’s not about food
• Food-insecure households experience material deprivation
• It is a struggle to afford the basic costs of living (food, housing, utilities, 

medication, child care, transportation, etc.)

Nutritious Food Basket (NFB), Income Scenarios - 2019
Monthly Income

(after tax)
Monthly

Rent
Monthly Food 

(NFB)
Money

Leftover

Family of Four 
receiving OW $2,643 $929 

(35% of income)
$975.85 

(37% of income) $738.15

Single Male 
receiving OW $838 $603 

(72% of income)
$328.23 

(39% of income) -$93.23

More food will NOT solve the problem. More money can.
Algoma Public Health. 2019 NFB Income Scenarios Spreadsheet.

Page 28 of 139

Page 33 of 159



Build back better: A policy opportunity for 
improving population health

• Write to the Prime Minister of Canada recommending the revision of 
CERB into a basic income for all Canadians, during the COVID-19 
pandemic and beyond.

• Strategically include the following stakeholders and partners, for the 
purpose of starting and maintaining a conversation about basic 
income in Algoma:

• Premier of Ontario, Algoma District MPs and MPPs and municipal councils, 
the Sault Ste. Marie Poverty Round Table, the North Shore Poverty Network, 
the Association of Local Public Health Agencies, the Ontario Public Health 
Association, and the Boards of Health in Ontario

Page 29 of 139

Page 34 of 159



Page 30 of 139

Page 35 of 159



Algoma Public Health in support of basic income 

Whereas addressing the determinants of health and reducing health inequities are 
fundamental to the work of public health; and  

Whereas effective public health programs and services consider the impact of the determinants 
of health on health outcomes; and 

Whereas income is the single largest determinant of health and low income has a well-
established link to adverse health outcomes and is associated with shorter life expectancy; and  

Whereas income or lack thereof determines the quality of other social determinants of health, 
such as food insecurity, housing and basic necessities of life; and 

Whereas currently, 14.2% of Canadians, 13.7 % of Ontarians and 16.1% of Algoma residents 
live in low income circumstances; and 

Whereas income inequality continues to increase in Ontario and Canada while current income 
security programs by provincial and federal governments are not sufficient to ensure adequate, 
secure income for all; and 

Whereas the current economic disruption of COVID-19 has exacerbated income inequality to 
unprecedented levels, with certain priority populations (e.g. immigrants, refugees, low income 
workers, having been disproportionately impacted: and 

Whereas the Canadian Emergency Response Benefit (CERB) was created as a temporary 
measure to respond to the immediate economic crisis associated with COVID-19; and  

Whereas this is an opportunity to build healthy public policy by restructuring CERB into a basic 
income program for all Canadians; and  

Whereas  a basic  income program will reduce persistent poverty and improve Canadians’ 
health, and their ability to manage future and existing income challenges; and 

Whereas the concept of a basic income has been endorsed by many, including, Association of 
Local Public Health Agencies (Ontario), Canadian Medical Association, Canadian Public Health 
Association, Ontario Public Health Association, and the Ontario Dietitians in Public Health, as 
part of multipronged approach to reducing poverty; and 

Whereas there is growing public and political sector support  for a national basic income. 

Now Therefore Be It Resolved That the Board of Health of Algoma Public Health write to the 
Prime Minister of Canada recommending the revision of the Canada Emergency Response 

Page 31 of 139

Page 36 of 159



Benefit (CERB) into a basic income for all Canadians, during the COVID-19 pandemic and 
beyond.   
 
And furthermore That the Premier of Ontario, Algoma District MPs and MPPs and municipal 
councils, the Sault Ste. Marie Poverty Round Table, the North Shore Poverty Network, the 
Association of Local Public Health Agencies, the Ontario Public Health Association, and the 
Boards of Health in Ontario receive a copy of the Board’s letter to the Prime Minister. 
 
 

 

  

Page 32 of 139

Page 37 of 159



PRESENT : BOARD MEMBERS APH EXECUTIVE
Dr. Heather O'Brien Tania Caputo - Board Secretary

Lee Mason - BOH Chair Dr. Marlene Spruyt - Medical Officer of Health/CEO
Ed Pearce - F&AC Chair Dr. Jennifer Loo - AMOH & Director of Health Protection
Deborah Graystone - Gov. Chair Justin Pino - CFO /Director of Operations

Antoniette Tomie - Director of Human Resources
Louise Caicco Tett Laurie Zeppa - Director of Health Promotion & Prevention
Sally Hagman
Micheline Hatfield
Brent Rankin
Matthew Scott

*

1.0 Meeting Called to Order 

a. 

2.0 Adoption of Agenda

Moved: D. Graystone

Seconded: P. Avery

CARRIED

3.0 Delegations / Presentations

4.0 Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting 

Moved: M. Hatfield

Seconded: P. Avery

CARRIED

5.0 Business Arising from Minutes

Not Applicable

* Meeting held during the provincially declared emergency

Board of Health Meeting 
MINUTES

June 24, 2020 at 5:00 pm
Video/Teleconference │   Algoma Community Room

VC/TC : 

Dr. Patricia Avery 

Proceedings are being recorded via Webex and will be available for public viewing.

Declaration of Conflict of Interest

RESOLUTION
2020-51

THAT the Board of Health agenda dated June 24, 2020 be approved as amended.

RESOLUTION
2020-52

THAT the May 27, 2020 Board of Health Meeting Minutes and and June 3, 2020 Board of Health Special 
Meeting Minutes be approved as presented.

In regards to the June 3, 2020 Special Meeting Minutes, Item 3. Reporting Concerns,  it was noted by B. Rankin 
that the minutes should capture that existing policies were followed by APH Staff and Senior Administration 
and that there was thought to be room for change and accommodation and review.  

No conflicts were declared.

Page 33 of 139

Page 38 of 159



6.0 Reports to the Board

a. Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer Reports

i. 

ii. More to Public Health than Covid-19 - for information only

iii. APH Covid-19 Response - the slide deck will be posted in the Addendum 

Moved: S. Hagman

Seconded: D. Graystone

CARRIED

b. Finance and Audit 

i.

ii.

Moved: E. Pearce

Seconded: P. Avery

CARRIED

E. Pearce provided an overview of the June 11, 2020 Finance and Audit Committee meeting.

J. Pino provided an overview and of the April 30, 2020 financial statements.

M. Spruyt provided expamples of programs that have found efficiencies as a result of COVID induced 
changes - an example is the Pre-natal nutrition program which supports pregnant women living in 
poverty.  They would travel in, meet with a Dietician or Public Health Nurse and receive educational 
supports and a package with food and milk coupons.   The virtual program cuts out the transportation 
and they are given vouchers to use at any grocery store and have reported that they have better 
choice now without an increased cost to the program.  The clientele has increased by 30%.  Other 
agencies have also had positive responses from clientele involved in virtual programs.

J. Loo delivered this presentation explaining the goals of pandemic response; to minimize serious 
illness and death and to minimize societal disruption requiring a "whole of society" response.  She 
explained the structure of IMS along with the role of each area.  J.Loo walked us through a timeline of 
the APH Covid-19 Response including an overview of the Communications Team media initiatives 
throughout. There was discussion about mask wearing recommendations and messaging, as well as 
effectiveness of various face coverings. Communicating Provincial directives and implementation was 
discussed, as well as redeploying nurses to COVID-19 work, and preparedness for future waves. 
Concerns remain about minimizing risk to communities when travellers are arriving from outside of 
our district.  APH will work closely with places of business to ensure measures are in place for 
protection. School plans for fall are in the works and we expect to receive direction from the Province 
as they lay the groundwork for these plans.

Finance and Audit Committee Chair Report

Financial Statements

RESOLUTION 
2020-54

THAT the unaudited Financial Statements for the period ending April 30, 2020 and the Finance and Audit 
Committee Chair Report for June 11, 2020 be approved as presented.

M. Spruyt spoke about resuming the regular work of Public Health while still responding to COVID-19 
and upscaling those activities if there is a surge.  A link is included in the MOH/CEO report to an article 
about the risk of not returning to Public Health work and makes the point that a number of other 
health issues still exist and require continued attention.

MOH Report, June 2020

RESOLUTION
2020-53

THAT the report of the Medical Officer of Health and CEO for June 2020 be adopted as presented.

Page 34 of 139

Page 39 of 159



ii.

iii.

Moved: E. Pearce

Seconded: B. Rankin

CARRIED

c. Governance

i.

ii.

iii. 02-05-085 Orientation Board Members - Policy

iv. 02-05-015 Conflict of Interest - Policy

v. 02-05-045 Attendance at Meetings Using Electronic Means - Policy

vi. 06-02 Ontario Building Code Appointments - Bylaw

vii. 15-01 To Provide for the Management of Property - Bylaw

viii. Terms of Reference for the Governance Committee

Moved: S. Hagman

Seconded: L. Caicco Tett

CARRIED

7.0 New Business/General Business

Not applicable.

D. Graystone provided an overview of the Jun 17, 2020 Governance Committee Meeting with discussion 
about the Conflict of Interest policy that is being revisited at the September 2020 meeting.  

Terms of Reference - Finance and Audit Committee

Summary of Covid Costs as of April 2020 - for information only

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves  Bylaw 06-02 Ontario Building Code Appointments as 
presented, and;

RESOLUTION
2020-55

THAT the Terms of Reference for the Finance and Audit Committee be approved as presented.

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves Bylaw 15-01 To Provide for the Management of 
Property as presented, and;

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves the Terms of Reference for the Governance Committee 
as presented.

Governance Committee Chair Report

THAT the Governance Committee Chair report for June 2020 be accepted as presented and;

02-05-060 Meetings and Access to Information - Policy

RESOLUTION
2020-56

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves Policy 02-05-060 Meetings and Access to Information as 
presented, and;

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves Policy 02-05-085 Orientation Board Members as 
presented, and;

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves Policy 02-05-015 Conflict of Interest as presented, and;

THAT the Board of Health has reviewed and approves Policy 02-05-045 Attendance at Meetings Using 
Electronic Means as presented, and;

Page 35 of 139

Page 40 of 159



8.0 Correspondence

a.

b.

c.

9.0 Items for Information 

Not applicable.

10.0

11.0

Moved: D. Graystone

Seconded: P. Avery

CARRIED

12.0

No resolutions resulting from the in-camera meeting.

13.0 Announcements / Next Committee Meetings:

Governance Committee Meeting

Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

Board of Health Meeting

Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

Finance & Audit Committee Meeting
October 14, 2020 @ 5:00 pm
Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

a.   APH Covid-19 Response Item 6. a) iii. 

Letter to the Prime Minister of Canada, The Deputy Prime Minister and the Minister of Finance from The 
Timiskaming Board of Health regarding Basic Income for Income Security during Covid-19 Pandemic and 
Beyond dated June 9, 2020.  

Memo from the Ministry of Health regarding Pandemic Pay Eligibility dated May 27, 2020.

Letter to the Transitional Regional Lead West, Ontario Health from Grey Bruce Health Unit regarding 
Reporting Inaccuracy COVID-19 Enhanced Surveillance of Long-Term Care, dated June 8, 2020.

For discussion of labour relations and employee negotiations, matters about identifiable individuals, adoption 
of in camera minutes, security of the property of the board, litigation or potential litigation.

RESOLUTION
2020-57

Addendum

In-Camera 6:29 pm

THAT the Board of Health go in-camera.

Open Meeting - 6:45 pm

September 9, 2020 @ 5:00 pm

September 23, 2020 @ 5:00 pm

b.  Letter to municipalities on communication to clarify procedures and processes and welcoming feedback.

Page 36 of 139

Page 41 of 159



14.0 Evaluation

L. Mason requested that board members complete the yearly evaluation 

15.0 Adjournment - 6:47 pm

Moved: E. Pearce

Seconded: D. Graystone

THAT the Board of Health meeting adjourns.

CARRIED

Tania Caputo, Secretary

Date

Lee Mason, Chair

Date

RESOLUTION
2020-59

Page 37 of 139

Page 42 of 159



BOARD MEMBERS APH EXECUTIVE
PRESENT : Lee Mason - BOH Chair Antoniette Tomie - Director of Human Resources

Ed Pearce - F&AC Chair Tania Caputo - Board Secretary
Deborah Graystone - Gov. Chair

Dr. Marlene Spruyt - Medical Officer of Health/CEO
Louise Caicco Tett
Sally Hagman
Micheline Hatfield
Dr. Heather O'Brien
Brent Rankin
Matthew Scott

1.0 Meeting Called to Order 

a. 

No conflicts were declared

2.0 Adoption of Agenda

Moved: E. Pearce

Seconded: D. Graystone

CARRIED

3.0

Moved: D. Graystone

Seconded: L. Caicco Tett

CARRIED

4.0

Resolutions resulting from in-camera meeting.

Moved: L. Caicco Tett

Seconded: S. Hagman

THAT the Board of Health go in-camera.

Open Meeting - 6:15 pm

Dr. Patricia Avery 

Declaration of Conflict of Interest

RESOLUTION
2020-60

THAT the Board of Health Special Meeting agenda dated August 18, 2020 be approved as presented.

In-Camera - 4:05 pm

Board of Health Special Meeting 
MINUTES

August 18, 2020 at 4:00 pm
Video/Teleconference │  Algoma Community Room

* Meeting held during the provincially declared emergency

VC/TC :

RESOLUTION
2020-63

For discussion of labour relations and employee negotiations, matters about identifiable individuals, 
adoption of in camera minutes, security of the property of the board, litigation or potential litigation.

RESOLUTION
2020-61

Page 38 of 139

Page 43 of 159



CARRIED

NOTE: 

5.0 Announcements / Next Committee Meetings:

Governance Committee Meeting

Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

Board of Health Meeting

Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

Finance & Audit Committee Meeting
October 14, 2020 @ 5:00 pm
Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

6.0 Adjournment at 6:18 pm

Moved: E. Pearce

Seconded: H. O'Brien

THAT the Board of Health meeting adjourns.

September 9, 2020 @ 5:00 pm

September 23, 2020 @ 5:00 pm

RESOLUTION
2020-64

THAT the Board of Health accepts the recommendation of the Recruitment Committee for the position of 
the MOH/CEO.

M. Hatfield left the meeting at 5:30 pm

Page 39 of 139

Page 44 of 159



BOARD MEMBERS APH EXECUTIVE
PRESENT : Lee Mason - BOH Chair Antoniette Tomie - Director of Human Resources

Ed Pearce - F&AC Chair Tania Caputo - Board Secretary
Deborah Graystone - Gov. Chair

Dr. Marlene Spruyt - Medical Officer of Health/CEO
Louise Caicco Tett
Sally Hagman
Micheline Hatfield
Dr. Heather O'Brien
Brent Rankin
Matthew Scott

1.0 Meeting Called to Order - 5:04 PM
a. 

No conflicts declared.

2.0 Adoption of Agenda
Moved: E. Pearce

Seconded: L. Caicco Tett

CARRIED

3.0

Moved: E. Pearce
Seconded: L. Caicco Tett

CARRIED

4.0
There were no resolutions resulting from in-camera meeting.

5.0 Announcements / Next Committee Meetings:

Governance Committee Meeting

Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

In-Camera - 5:05 PM

Board of Health Special Meeting 
MINUTES

September 2, 2020 at 5:00 pm
Video/Teleconference │  SSM Algoma Community Room

Declaration of Conflict of Interest

RESOLUTION
2020-65

THAT the Board of Health Special Meeting agenda dated September 2, 2020 be approved as presented.

VC/TC : Dr. Patricia Avery 

For discussion of labour relations and employee negotiations, matters about identifiable individuals, 
adoption of in camera minutes, security of the property of the board, litigation or potential litigation.

Open Meeting - 5:45 pm

September 9, 2020 @ 5:00 pm

RESOLUTION
2020-66

THAT the Board of Health go in-camera.

Page 40 of 139

Page 45 of 159



Board of Health Meeting

Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

Finance & Audit Committee Meeting
October 14, 2020 @ 5:00 pm
Webex Audio / Video Conference │SSM Algoma Community Room 

6.0 Adjournment 5:50 pm
Moved: D. Graystone

Seconded: H. O'Brien
THAT the Board of Health meeting adjourns.

RESOLUTION
2020-69

September 23, 2020 @ 5:00 pm

Page 41 of 139

Page 46 of 159



 
 
  

  

September 2020 

Prepared by:   
Dr. Marlene Spruyt and the  
Leadership Team 
 
Presented to:  
Algoma Public Health Board of Health  
23/9/2020 

Medical Officer of Health / CEO 

Page 42 of 139

Page 47 of 159



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
September 23, 2020 
Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

1 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Program Highlights Pages 3-10 Program Highlights Pages  5 - 11 APH At-a-Glance Page   2 TABLE OF CONTENTS 

  

APH At-a-Glance Page   2 - 3 

Partnerships Page   4 

Page 43 of 139

Page 48 of 159



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
September 23, 2020 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 

2 

 
APH 6 months into the COVID-19 Pandemic. 
 
In my last writing in June, we experienced steady numbers of less than 200 positive cases per 
day. Over the summer, the numbers continued to fall and stayed in the 100 to 150 range. This, 
combined with the eventual movement of all regions in the province to Stage 3, may have 
created some complacency among the community. Many people began to think that life was 
back to normal. Some felt wearing masks meant they did not have to maintain a physical 
distance. Larger groups celebrated summer weekends without masks.  Unfortunately, as most 
of you are aware, this behaviour is resulting in an increase in positive cases across the 
province, which has resulted in a reduction of the size of allowable social gatherings in the three 
areas of the province seeing the highest numbers. Other regions may follow.  
 
Evaluation of the effectiveness of our interventions is a common element of public health 
practice. A package developed by the Council of Medical Officers of Health (COMOH), which 
examines the collective actions of public health units across the province, is attached to my 
section of the report. 
 
During the initial days after the Emergency Order was invoked, we scrambled to build teams 
that could; 

1. Respond and support individuals exposed and/or affected by the virus by expanding our 
case management and contact tracing capacity. 

2. Respond to community concerns and provide advice on how to stay safe. 
3. Support agencies and employers and organizations on how to integrate infection 

prevention and control measures into the work of essential workers (this eventually 
involved other businesses as the economy opened up). 

4. Support municipalities in their local Emergency response efforts. 
5. Communicate to all the different sectors of our community about a situation that most had 

never imagined. 
 

This occurred while we transitioned most of our staff to work from home and implemented 
internal controls to minimize risk to our own employees. Lower priority work was paused. Almost 
everyone had to learn new skills and perform different work. Our employees have been 
amazingly resilient during this process. 
 
Change has been a constant companion during the past six months. Every few weeks, new 
directives, guidance documents, or regulations would be announced, and our activities would 
shift again. During the summer, more and more businesses were allowed to open with school 
and post-secondary institution re-openings being the most recent transition. 

APH AT-A-GLANCE 

Page 44 of 139

Page 49 of 159



Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer 
Board Report 
September 23, 2020 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 

3 

At the six month mark, some of this activity has begun to feel normal and sustainable. And now, 
we begin to examine how we can return to some of our previous work. 
 
Schools: As schools were closed, our entire school team of PHNs was directed to COVID-19 
response work. Fortunately, additional funding has been provided specifically for the return to 
school support as otherwise, we might not have been able to redeploy this group of experienced 
staff back to their previous area of focus. Their work will be different, but they can leverage the 
partnerships they had with individual school communities to support those schools in navigating 
the complexity of providing quality education and social interaction in the safest way possible. 
The new hires will fill the vacancies left in COVID response and help us to resume other 
important public health activities such as immunization. 
 
Dental Services: Seniors dental services have resumed, and children’s services are poised to 
resume, although school dental screening remains on hold. 
 
Harm Reduction Programs: Needle exchange and naloxone distribution have continued 
throughout. 
 
Immunization: Catchup clinics for school immunizations that were paused in the spring are 
underway, and planning for this years’ influenza season is almost complete. Many feel that the 
demand for vaccine will be increased, and we are working with community partners via the 
recently approved Algoma Ontario Health Team to increase uptake among healthcare providers 
and the community at large. Low demand has paused the travel health program. 
 
Environmental Health Programs: Food Safety and Safe Water activities have continued 
throughout with modifications, including reduced inspections as food premises were closed. 
Now inspections include responding to increased complaints from community members 
regarding businesses that they feel might not be following public health measures. Food safety 
courses have resumed in a virtual format. 
 
Communications: Supporting all the changes above and connecting our program staff with the 
public has been our amazing Communications team. They are continually updating our website, 
monitoring media content, creating fact sheets to simplify complex guidance documents, 
creating new social media content to make our messaging interesting, circulating updates to our 
partners and answering media enquiries. 
 
 

PARTNERSHIPS 
 
Partnerships have been integral to all our work. As we have been saying, we are all in this 
together. 

Page 45 of 139

Page 50 of 159



PUBLIC HEALTH SYSTEM EVALUATION AND LESSONS FROM THE FIRST PEAK OF COVID-19:  
A Report on Behalf of the Council of Ontario Medical Officers of Health  

Sept.1, 2020 

INTRODUCTORY COMMENTS  

 

I am pleased to share the attached report undertaken on behalf of the Council of Ontario Medical Officers of 
Health (COMOH) evaluating Ontario’s local public health system response to the first peak of COVID-19.  

Thanks to a colossal and unprecedented multisectoral effort led by the provincial government on advice from 
the Office of Chief Medical Officer of Health/Public Health and Public Health Ontario, our province was able to 
flatten the COVID-19 curve. The quick, province-wide implementation of public health measures, closures and 
emergency regulations all played an important collective role in preventing potentially devastating 
consequences including thousands more deaths and overwhelming hospital/ICU-use surges seen in other 
countries, even to this day. Recognizing the co-operation and sacrifices made by individual Ontarians and their 
families, and business/service sectors across provincial, local, and municipal levels we are now poised for the 
next phase of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

It is the intent of this report to clearly describe the role of the local public health system during the 1st COVID-
19 peak and provide lessons learned and identified opportunities that collectively form foundations to build 
upon in preparation for the next phase as we wait for an effective vaccine. This includes supporting a safe return 
to school, preparing for the upcoming flu season while we continue our timely contact tracing and surveillance 
activities to identify and contain new COVID-19 infections/outbreaks as rapidly as possible, and maintain our 
pandemic-related collaborations, partnerships and communications activities. 

The report captures the vast array of work in response to the pandemic lead by local Medical Officers of Health 
(MOH) and their highly devoted, professional, and nimble public health staff working along side their local 
boards of health. The identified components of the local public health response include several key 
cornerstones: A collaborative approach, supportive community leadership, strategic partnerships, health equity 
and a vital communications role. Additionally, unique public health expertise in infectious disease control and 
outbreak management, contact tracing, epidemiology/surveillance, and working collaboratively with Ontario 
Health all contributed to protection of the community as well as preventing our acute healthcare system from 
being overwhelmed. 

The key words here are collaboration, public health expertise, partnerships and trust, all hallmarks of public 
health. Due to their local presence and familiarity with area politicians, healthcare partners, stakeholders and 
the community, that public health units can effectively and efficiently tailor, deliver and/or implement provincial 
directives and policies locally.  

In closing, I would like to gratefully acknowledge the group of MOHs that created this report and the tireless 
work and dedication of all my MOH and Associate MOH colleagues and their incredible public health staff. 

Thank you for taking the time to review our report.  

 

Dr. Paul Roumeliotis, MD.CM.,MPH, FRCP(C), CCPE 
Chair, Council of Ontario Medical Officers of Health 

Page 46 of 139

Page 51 of 159



Public health 
system 

evaluation and 
lessons from the 

first peak of 
COVID-19

A report on behalf of 
the Council of Ontario 
Medical Officers of 
Health

August 2020

Page 47 of 139

Page 52 of 159



The Council of Ontario Medical Officers of Health, a section of the 
Association of Local Public Health Agencies, is committed to 

improving the health of Ontarians and increasing health equity by 
strengthening Ontario’s public health system. This report and 

supporting appendix are presented on behalf of the Council in an 
effort to achieve its mission through system leadership and 

coordination in collaboration with the provincial government and 
other organizations, and through evidence-informed advocacy on 

public health policy. 

2
Page 48 of 139

Page 53 of 159



Context
 Local public health units have spent months leading the response to the 

COVID-19 pandemic across sectors in their communities

 Public health is evaluating its actions and sharing lessons learned from 
the first peak and resurgences

 These findings can be used to protect Ontario's communities by:

 Building on aspects of the public health system response that should 
continue or be enhanced during resurgence and future peaks

 Informing health system planning and preparedness for resurgence 
of COVID-19 and the upcoming influenza season

 Leveraging the strengths of the local public health system 
connections with community to ensure cross sector interventions

 Enhancing collaborative efforts with the public health system and 
health system partners in the Ministry of Health, Ontario Health, 
Ministry of Long-Term Care, and Primary Care

3
Page 49 of 139

Page 54 of 159



Impact of public 
health

 Contained COVID-19 and prevented our health system from being 
overwhelmed, despite seeing jurisdictions that demonstrated early 
control now facing significant resurgence1.2

 Implemented widespread and timely public health measures and local 
public health responses that prevented an estimated 220,000 cases and 
4,400 deaths3

 Local public health units kept cases contained by tackling challenges
faced with re-opening and by tracing growing numbers of contacts for 
every case  

4

1. Public Health Agency of Canada. Update on COVID-19 in Canada: Epidemiology and Modelling (August 14, 2020).
2. Government of Ontario. COVID-19 case data (August 14, 2020).
3. Office of the Premier of Ontario. Ontario provides full transparency by releasing COVID-19 modelling [press release] (2020 April 3).

Page 50 of 139

Page 55 of 159



Methods
 The Council of Ontario Medical Officers of Health (COMOH) initiated a 

sector-wide evaluation to:

1. Capture what happened during public health’s prevention, 
preparedness, and response efforts in the first six months of the 
COVID-19 pandemic

2. Identify and learn from aspects of the public health system 
response that should continue or be enhanced during 
resurgences and future peaks

3. Apply lessons learned to prepare for resurgences of COVID-19, 
the upcoming influenza season, and future pandemics

 Evaluations and continuous quality improvement processes have been 
carried out by local public health units through reviews, surveys, and 
interviews with their teams, the public, community partners, and 
stakeholders across sectors, which have been incorporated into this 
report.

5
Page 51 of 139

Page 56 of 159



Methods

 All Medical Officers of Health 
invited to participate in the 
evaluation via email from 
COMOH on July 24, 2020

 17/34 (50%) local public health 
units participated (60% rural, 
40% urban), sharing insights on 
>100 local initiatives 

 Working group members 
collated responses and used 
qualitative methods (thematic 
analysis) to synthesize findings

 Further input received from all 
COMOH membership at two 
meetings

 Appendix outlining local public 
health initiatives, partner 
feedback, and collaborative 
efforts accompanies this report

Key questions:  

1. What worked well during the 
first peak?

2. What could be improved?

3. What should continue or be 
enhanced?

4. What else should we consider 
for future COVID-19 planning 
and influenza in the coming 
months?

6
Page 52 of 139

Page 57 of 159



Key 
components of 

local public 
health response

 Protecting our communities using public health measures to protect 
people from the virus, by minimizing transmission and deaths

 Supporting sustainability of our health care system by preventing cases 
and transmission

 Protecting and supporting those most adversely impacted by the 
pandemic due to poverty, social circumstance, or other discrimination

 Leading and supporting recovery across our communities to mitigate 
against the health, social, and economic harms of the virus, isolation, and 
restrictive measures

 Partnering and collaborating to support municipal, education, social 
service, health care, business, and community sectors 

 Communicating timely evidence-based information and data to the 
public and partners

7
Page 53 of 139

Page 58 of 159



Key 
components of 

local public 
health response

• Using surveillance and epidemiological analysis to target public health 
action and inform local health partners

• Synthesizing new scientific evidence, research and evaluation to apply 
the most effective and up-to-date public health interventions locally 

• Conducting intensive and meticulous case management and contact 
tracing while supporting isolation requirements

• Preventing and rapidly responding to outbreaks in community, 
workplace, congregate, and institutional settings

• Identifying key priorities and populations for focused testing strategies

• Preparing for safe re-opening of local schools, workplaces, daycares, 
personal service settings, restaurants, and other spaces 

• Planning and preparing our health system and communities for 
resurgences, future peaks, and influenza

8
Page 54 of 139

Page 59 of 159



Sustaining the 
local public 

health response

• Local public health leadership has been 
critical to protecting health and tailoring 
responses to meet the needs of our 
communities during the first peak

• Experience and technical training in 
public health emergencies and 
health protection prepared local public 
health to respond and built on existing 
pandemic preparedness and business 
continuity plans

• Public health measures prevented 
illnesses and deaths that would have 
overwhelmed our health care system 
and continue to threaten to do so as seen 
in other jurisdictions

• Public health leadership brought 
communities together to flatten the 
epidemic curve using preventive measures 
that continue to be a mainstay of the 
response

• The most effective system in a public 
health emergency relies on independent 
local public health authorities that can 
leverage strong partnerships and 
community knowledge to adapt direction 
that is coordinated at the provincial level

• Public health holds a unique, established, 
and trusted position that allows 
collaboration with municipalities, 
schools, childcare settings, businesses, 
social services including congregate 
settings, health care and institutions, 
media, and community organizations to 
effectively shape local response

• Provincial and regional coordination is 
critical to supporting the strong leadership 
and response undertaken by local public 
health units and boards of health

• Pandemic response required rapid 
mobilization and scaling up of a skilled 
public health workforce that will need 
ongoing investment to respond to 
resurgence and increasing complexity of 
case management and contact tracing

• Public health innovation and adoption of 
new digital solutions to improve 
effectiveness and efficiency have been 
vital to enhancing widespread detection 
and containment efforts 

9
Page 55 of 139

Page 60 of 159



Themes identified in the public health system evaluation

Public 
health’s 
effective 
response 
relied on

Early upstream interventions to prevent illness and prepare our communities

An approach to improving health of the whole population with a focus on health equity

Leveraging local partnerships to translate provincial direction into effective local action

Provincial and regional coordination to support local implementation

A highly skilled and agile workforce that will require ongoing investment

Digital solutions to optimize efficiency and support data sharing 

10
Page 56 of 139

Page 61 of 159



Prevention and 
preparedness

Local public health expertise focused on community-wide pandemic preparedness
and upstream prevention of illness and death

• Worked with local partners to ensure health system capacity was not 
overwhelmed

• Rapidly moved to enhanced operations and IMS structures due to pandemic 
preparedness and continuity of operations planning

• Advocated for early interventions to address personal protective 
equipment (PPE) needs across sectors, implementing testing of all staff 
and residents within outbreak facilities, and for universal masking in 
hospitals, long term care and retirement homes, and community and 
primary care settings

• Conducted proactive infection prevention and control (IPAC) assessments
with partners to prevent local outbreaks in congregate settings, essential 
workplaces, and institutional settings

• Shared modelling projections for transmission with the public and partners 
while tailoring surveillance and epidemiological analyses to support 
communication about local situation  

“Keep up the good work! We 
depend on you to keep us safe by 
keeping an eye on the important 

things that may affect our health 
while we do what we need to do.”

- Community partner feedback

11
Page 57 of 139

Page 62 of 159



Prevention and 
preparedness

Highlights from the field

• Due to concerns of community transmission, Peel Public Health along with other 
local health units across the province pre-emptively closed nightclubs, concert 
venues, theatres, and dine-in services at restaurants ahead of provincial direction.

• Halton Region Public Health worked closely with local hospitals and LHINs to 
lead a congregate setting strategy, which took a pro-active approach with all 
congregate and institutional settings in doing in-person IPAC visits and assisted 
these priority settings in ensuring appropriate IPAC measures were in place to 
reduce their risk level for COVID-19.

• Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit, in partnership with primary care and 
hospitals, proactively established local assessment centres prior to provincial 
direction.

• Hamilton Public Health Services conducted proactive pre-opening inspections of 
all licensed childcare programs in the city, working with the Child System Services 
Manager to ensure the safe re-opening of all child care spaces.

12
Page 58 of 139

Page 63 of 159



Health Equity
 Public health applied population-level interventions that addressed health 

equity by considering the needs of settings that may be more vulnerable to 
COVID-19 and populations that would disproportionately experience the negative 
unintended consequences of public health measures

• Identified and addressed needs of people who may be more susceptible to 
COVID-19 by providing IPAC and testing support to congregate settings such 
as shelters and long term care homes

• Partnered to develop isolation centres for people experiencing 
homelessness, distributed non-medical masks to those with limited means, 
and mobilized volunteers to provide supports like grocery or prescription 
delivery to people in isolation or quarantine 

• Monitored and mitigated the unintended consequences of public health 
measures by providing PPE to community agencies serving priority 
populations, continued to distribute naloxone kits and other essential public 
health services, and partnered with local agencies to address rising mental 
health and substance use concerns

• Developed new methods for engaging and collaborating with communities 
on the collection of local raced-based and socioeconomic data 

“Our shelters have had relatively 
low numbers, and we expected to 
have numbers like long term care 
facilities. We should think about 

what we are doing right.”

- Community partner feedback

13
Page 59 of 139

Page 64 of 159



Health Equity
Highlights from the field

• Timiskaming Health Unit convened a Community Support Collaborative to 
identify priority population needs arising from COVID-19, and partnered to access 
funds for cleaning supplies, PPE, and Plexiglas partitions for private transportation 
providers in rural communities without public transit.

• York Region Public Health, in collaboration with shelters, identified an increase in 
domestic violence rates and developed resources to support this population with 
guidance for individuals experiencing abuse during heightened times of isolation. 

• Public Health Sudbury & Districts ensured local partners working with priority 
populations were trained in IPAC measures to continue to safely deliver services, 
supported the implementation of isolation shelter for people experiencing 
homelessness, and mobilized volunteers to provide supports to people in isolation.

• North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit enhanced their community harm 
reduction work through promotion of new harm reduction messages within the 
context of COVID-19, redirecting clients when service disruptions occurred, and 
collaborated on a community alert when surges in adverse events related to drugs 
were detected in the community.

14
Page 60 of 139

Page 65 of 159



Partnerships  Public health acted as a bridge across health and social systems to enhance 
collective community action for a strong and effective response

 Leveraged existing local partnerships with health care sector, municipalities, 
schools, and community organizations to facilitate:

• Collaborative planning tables to ensure coordinated local responses and 
resources for First Nations, Inuit, and Métis community members

• Provision of IPAC support to hospitals, long term care and retirement 
homes, child care centres, and congregate settings like shelters, group 
homes, and detention centres

• Direct support for local implementation of public health measures including 
development of regulations and by-laws and tailored guidance for schools, 
businesses, child care centres, and community organizations in order to 
protect the health of workers and their clients

We as an organization depend on 
public health webpages, news 

releases, and phone calls for the 
advice we need to give the people 

we support a better quality of life. 

- Community partner feedback

15
Page 61 of 139

Page 66 of 159



Partnerships
Highlights from the field

• Public Health Sudbury & Districts has a First Nations Community Partners Table to discuss 
community needs during the pandemic, share resources, and help make connections with other 
sectors (e.g., to support re-opening plans, surveillance testing, and community pandemic 
response plans).

• Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit’s past pandemic planning enabled a strong, collaborative 
relationship with municipalities when responding to COVID-19. Weekly teleconferences enabled 
a coordinated response to a number of challenges, including public crowding on beaches and 
use of face coverings in indoor public spaces.

• North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit partnered with a local construction company to 
develop COVID-19 safety protocols well in advance of these being asked by the Ministry.

• Hamilton Public Health Services worked with local Indigenous service providers to launch an 
Indigenous peer-to-peer COVID-19 phone line to access public health information on COVID-19.

• Ottawa Public Health’s relationship with the City of Ottawa enabled success in countless 
initiatives from redeploying city staff and infrastructure to the response, working rapidly to 
implement a bylaw for indoor masking, proactively building a safer approach for public transit 
and emergency child care centres, and working as a member of the city’s Human Needs Task 
Force to plan for food security, housing, transportation, volunteer services, fundraising, and 
psychosocial supports.

16
Page 62 of 139

Page 67 of 159



Coordination
 Coordination between local public health units helped strengthen the 

pandemic response, improve efficiency, and share work loads:

 Public health units shared human and digital resources, technical 
expertise and new methods, and collaborated to promote regional 
consistency during times of uncertainty from the earliest phases of the 
pandemic

 Increasing proportion of public health workforce working remotely 
while embracing new technological platforms for engagement has 
allowed greater coordination and collaboration across jurisdictions

 Public health implemented provincial strategies, while allowing for 
local variation and adaptation due to different local contexts on issues 
such as community transmission, cross-border travel, masking, testing, 
and laboratory capacity

 Provincial and regional information sharing through channels such as 
Ministry Emergency Operations Committee calls, updates from Public Health 
Ontario, calls with Medical Officers of Health, and Ontario Health regional 
planning tables

From the hospital perspective, 
most decisions made by health 

service partners have an impact on 
our operations. The coordination by 

[a local public health unit] to 
many, if not all, players at the 
same table at the same time, 
hearing the same message, 

enhanced our understanding and 
response

- Hospital partner feedback
17

Page 63 of 139

Page 68 of 159



Coordination Highlights from the field

• Eastern Ontario Health Unit, Leeds, Grenville and Lanark District Health Unit, 
Renfrew County and District Health, and Ottawa Public Health coordinated to 
develop a mandatory masking policy to ensure consistency across the region and 
avoid duplication of efforts, with each public health unit then moving forward to 
adapt within their own local context. 

• Since January 2020, the Ontario Public Health Emergency Managers Network
shared updates, resources, consultations, and professional development 
information amongst its members to support local responses.

• Medical Officers of Health in the Greater Toronto and Hamilton area worked 
together during the pandemic to share information and where possible, coordinate 
their responses given the mobility of individuals within their geographic area. 

• Porcupine Health Unit and Timiskaming Health Unit formed a working group to 
provide timely and consistent responses and support to School Boards that span 
their districts.  The group also aims to reduce duplication of effort related to 
ongoing COVID-19 supports for schools.

18
Page 64 of 139

Page 69 of 159



Workforce
 Local public health leadership rapidly responded to COVID-19 by 

applying years of experience in public health emergencies and working with 
community partners on IPAC and outbreak management

 When redeployed to the COVID-19 response, public health’s highly skilled 
workforce has adapted quickly to new roles and technologies, 
demonstrating resilience

 Key public health skills and roles highlighted in the response include 
epidemiology, emergency preparedness, IPAC, case management and contact 
tracing, health communications, community engagement, and focus on health 
equity implications of pandemic

 Critical core services that protect the health of our communities, such as 
public health inspections and responding to other infectious diseases, 
continued to be offered during the pandemic and must continue in order to 
prevent increased pressures on the health care system

The ability of the IMS structure to 
be flexible and responsive to the 
emerging needs was extremely 
helpful. Training by the Rapid 

Response Team helped to ready 
people. I think we did amazing 

work, and I am very proud to have 
been part of it.

- Local public health unit staff

19
Page 65 of 139

Page 70 of 159



Workforce Highlights from the field

• "From the time I received the call that I was positive to COVID-19, I ALWAYS felt like I 
had the support of Algoma Public Health... Having gone through the experience, the 
community should have complete faith in the process - I have never answered so 
many questions in my life and to say that your case management was thorough is an 
understatement. The nurses on your front line were remarkable... I truly felt like they 
cared about my physical and mental wellbeing.” – Community member feedback

• While many health system partners were scaling back and experiencing lower 
volumes, Huron Perth Public Health and Brant County Health Unit rapidly scaled 
up from a Monday to Friday 8:30 - 4:30 and 24/7 on-call operation to Monday to 
Friday two shifts with evenings, weekend shifts, and 24/7 on-call in order to 
respond to the need for support to the public, partners, and stakeholders. 

• “They received a call, they responded immediately. They gave accurate information 
and they followed up on each situation that I was involved in.”– Community partner 
feedback to Public Health Sudbury & Districts

20
Page 66 of 139

Page 71 of 159



Digital solutions

 Local public health units adopted new digital solutions that were critical to 
optimize the function, efficiency, and effectiveness of case management, 
contact tracing, and outbreak investigation and management

 Dashboards were developed to visualize data while allowing for real-time 
transparency of public health efforts and health system pressures, including 
indicators for local monitoring and informing re-opening decisions

 Public health workforce rapidly adapted to new platforms for working remotely 
and continued supporting case and contact management efforts virtually  

Excellent media and social media 
presence with clear, succinct, and 
recent evidence-based principles.

- Community partner feedback

21
Page 67 of 139

Page 72 of 159



Digital solutions
Highlights from the field

• Ottawa Public Health developed a dynamic disease reporting system. The COVID-19 Ottawa 
Database (known as “The COD”), adapted from a system used in Newfoundland and 
Labrador, supports local case management and contact tracing. Building from this database 
has led to development of novel epidemiological methods and technology to detect potential 
clusters earlier and mobilize resources to investigate.

• KFL&A Public Health, working with the Office of the CMOH, enabled the real-time capture 
of suspected COVID-19 emergency department visits across the province in the Acute Care 
Enhanced Surveillance (ACES) system and built the Pandemic Tracker as a public tool 
(https://www.kflaphi.ca/aces-pandemic-tracker/). 

• Machine learning was developed by York Region Public Health to optimize the utility and 
interpretation of OLIS lab results data to support the automation of reporting and timely case 
follow up.

• Hamilton Public Health Services adapted existing technology used for routine inspections of 
food premises. Inspectors record COVID-19 IPAC observations and education data into the 
existing Hedgehog Inspection System to ensure all information is stored together.

• Middlesex-London Health Unit developed Azure software and several other local public 
health units were able to use this platform to facilitate the COVID-19 response.

22
Page 68 of 139

Page 73 of 159



Opportunities to 
sustain the 

public health 
response

 Local public health must provide ongoing leadership and 
guidance in all essential public health functions to support 
sectors and tailor responses that meet the needs and strengths of 
our communities

• Continue to lead planning and preparedness efforts in our 
communities using data-driven projections and evidence-
informed interventions founded in public health expertise

• Lead clear, concise, and engaging public health 
communications across traditional and social media 
platforms that enable the public to reduce their risk

 Local public health must build on partnerships and 
collaboration across sectors to address new and complex 
community challenges such as return to school, increased 
demand for health services, increase in visitors to long term care 
homes, re-opening of businesses, and larger social gatherings

• Build well-resourced school health teams led by local public 
health to prepare and respond to new cases while 
supporting students and families with mental health and 
other health concerns

23
Page 69 of 139

Page 74 of 159



Opportunities to 
sustain the 

public health 
response

 There must be investment in local public health workforce to 
allow for surge capacity needed for increasing complexity of 
pandemic response and maintaining critical core public health 
services 

• Support collaboration between local public health units 
through new or existing public health “hubs” where 
resources can be shared and broader actions coordinated 
without reducing workforce

• Enhance surge capacity for contact tracing and outbreak 
management by enabling rapid movement of workforce 
from one jurisdiction to another, based on local 
epidemiology

• Enhance sharing of expert technical guidance, standards of 
practice, communications products, data analysis

• Explore strategies to ensure and promote workforce 
resilience, while protecting mental and physical health

24
Page 70 of 139

Page 75 of 159



Opportunities to 
sustain the 

public health 
response

 There must be increased resources for IPAC and outbreak 
management in higher-risk settings and priority populations to 
minimize severe illness that would strain the health care system

• Health system support and ongoing collaboration with 
Ontario Health for targeted and mobile testing strategies as 
part of early community cluster response

• Proactive IPAC through audits and consultation with higher 
risk congregate and institutional settings in partnership with 
the broader health system

• Review effective strategies to increase population uptake of 
influenza vaccine as added protection during resurgence 
and reduce potential strain of respiratory illness on the 
healthcare system

25
Page 71 of 139

Page 76 of 159



Opportunities to 
sustain the 

public health 
response

 Local public health expertise and connections with community must be 
capitalized on at regional and provincial tables

 Roles of key health system players must be clarified and mutually 
respected for maximum health gains 

• Clarify and align roles across Ontario pandemic response structure 
for public health and health system partners including local public 
health, Ministry of Health, Chief Medical Officer of Health, Public 
Health Ontario, Ontario Health, and Ministry of Long-Term Care

• Ensure public health and acute care expertise are informing each 
other's separate but complimentary actions through partnerships at 
the five regional Ontario Health pandemic response tables, with 
clear lines of communication with local and provincial planning 
tables

• Streamline reporting and coordination on pandemic response for 
medical officers of health with Chief Medical Officer of Health while 
maintaining local independence and accountability to boards of 
health

 New technologies must be developed and adapted to support case 
management, contact tracing, and outbreak investigations so local public 
health units can enhance effectiveness despite growing complexity

 Innovative technologies must be explored to help with advanced planning, 
forecasting, and operational response in dealing with resurgence and 
other respiratory illnesses

26
Page 72 of 139

Page 77 of 159



Community 
partner 
feedback

Thank you for the long hours and tireless work to try to get us through 
the pandemic. I know we have smart and innovative people who work 
for us to come up with solutions for us to live during this pandemic. We 

can get through this together.

27
Page 73 of 139

Page 78 of 159



Public health 
system 

evaluation and 
lessons from the 

first peak of 
COVID-19

A report on behalf of 
the Council of Ontario 
Medical Officers of 
Health

August 2020

Appendix of local public health 
initiatives and feedback

Page 74 of 139

Page 79 of 159



Public 
health’s 
effective 
response 
relied on

2

This document is provided as an Appendix to the ‘Public health 
system evaluation and lessons from the first peak of COVID-19’

report and captures feedback provided by members of the 
Council of Ontario Medical Officers of Health on local public 

health unit initiatives, partner perspectives, and collaborative 
efforts across the public health system. The highlights received 

from the field are categorized across the six themes identified in 
the evaluation, though in many cases are cross-cutting.

Prevention and preparedness

Health equity

Partnerships

Coordination

Workforce

Digital solutions

Page 75 of 139

Page 80 of 159



Prevention and 
preparedness

Halton Region Public Health worked 
closely with local hospitals and LHINs to 
lead a congregate setting strategy, which 
took a pro-active approach with all 
congregate and institutional settings in 
doing in-person IPAC visits and assisted 
these priority settings in ensuring 
appropriate IPAC measures were in place 
to reduce their risk level for COVID-19.

Hamilton Public Health Services 
conducted proactive pre-opening 
inspections of all licensed childcare 
programs in the city, working with the 
Child System Services Manager to ensure 
the safe re-opening of all child care 
spaces.

KFL&A Public Health has worked to
complete an After-Action Review using 
key informant interviews, focus groups, 
and a survey, to identify strengths and 
enhance agency's response moving 
forward.

KFL&A Public Health piloted mass 
testing surveillance activities.

Hospital partners highlighted they valued 
the “visibility, accessibility, and expertise” 
of Ottawa Public Health and its 
“outstanding” support for their 

organizations. Relayed they appreciated 
the team “daily huddles” and an approach 
to infection prevention and control that 
recognized their own expertise as well. 
- Hospital partner feedback

Ottawa Public Health’s skilled team of 
epidemiologists collaborated with 
hospital and university partners to use 
modelling to project the impact of public 
health interventions on the local epidemic 
curve. This supported the health care 
system in planning for hospital 
admissions and use of intensive care unit 
resources like ventilators.

Due to concerns of community 
transmission, Peel Public Health along 
with other local health units across the 
province pre-emptively closed nightclubs, 
concert venues, theatres, and dine-in 
services at restaurants ahead of provincial 
direction.

Public Health Sudbury & Districts
supported hospitals, schools, daycares, 
and local businesses to help with 
informed decisions and safe practices:
 “Public health proved very helpful!” 

“Keep up the good work! We depend on 
you to keep us safe by keeping an eye on 
the important things that may affect 

our health while we do what we need to 
do.” - Community partner feedback

Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit, in 
partnership with primary care and 
hospitals, proactively established local 
assessment centres prior to provincial 
direction.

York Region Public Health provided 
direct support to long term care and 
congregate living settings through onsite 
infection prevention and control (IPAC) 
preparedness and outbreak assessment 
visits, IPAC educational support to staff in 
these settings, and the provision of 
emergency personal protective kits for 
interim supply while additional resources 
were acquired. 

3
Page 76 of 139

Page 81 of 159



Health Equity

4

Halton Region Public Health partnered 

with paramedics to set up a community 

paramedic team for the purpose of 

testing people in the community who 

were unable to attend a community 

COVID-19 assessment centre due to 

physical mobility challenges.

Halton Region Public Health continued 

to deliver critical services to families and 

individuals throughout the pandemic (e.g. 

harm reduction services, Healthy Babies 

Healthy Children, telephone parenting 

supports).

Hamilton Public Health Services 

developed enhanced surveillance 

indicators for priority populations to 

monitor the societal impacts of COVID-19 

and the response. Through a partnership 

with local hospitals and police, indicators 

are provided in as close to real-time as 

possible, and jointly monitored by the 

Public Health Emergency Control Group 

and Hamilton’s EOC to enable a timely 

and collaborative response.

Huron Perth Public Health accessed 

United Way and private donor funding 

pots to provide grocery store cards to 

families at increased risk and those self-

isolating, as well as computer access to 

those living with low incomes in rural 

areas. 

KFL&A Public Health maintained key 

programming (e.g., HBHC and Child and 

BabyTalk) to support families during the 

COVID-19 crisis and worked with 

municipalities, health, and social service 

partners to establish a self-isolation 

centre for individuals experiencing 

homelessness. 

KFL&A Public Health coordinated IPAC 

activities with local partners working with 

priority populations (shelters) and higher-

risk settings (correctional institutions). 

KFL&A Public Health worked with 

Frontenac Paramedics to implement an 

outreach COVID-19 swabbing program to 

support rural populations, people with 

mobility issues and populations at higher 

risk. 

Ottawa Public Health used their 

relationships with community 

organizations to support the work of 

collecting, analyzing and reporting on 

race-based COVID-19 data, recognizing 

the critical importance of understanding 

how the health of certain communities 

has been disproportionately affected by 

the pandemic.

“Our shelters have had relatively low 

numbers, and we expected to have 

numbers like long term care facilities. We 

should think about what we are doing 

right.” - Community partner feedback to 

Ottawa Public Health

Public Health Sudbury & Districts 

provided guidance to agencies working 

with priority populations on safe best 

practices, access to harm reduction 

equipment, and daily visits to support 

homeless populations.

Public Health Sudbury & Districts 

ensured local partners working with 

priority populations were trained in IPAC 

measures to continue to safely deliver 

services, supported the implementation 

of an isolation shelter for people 

experiencing homelessness, and 

mobilized volunteers to provide supports 

to people in isolation.

Page 77 of 139

Page 82 of 159



Health Equity
North Bay Parry Sound District Health 
Unit enhanced their community harm 
reduction work through promotion of new 
harm reduction messages within the 
context of COVID-19, redirecting clients 
when service disruptions occurred, and 
collaborated on a community alert when 
surges in adverse events related to drugs 
were detected in the community.

Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit
(SMDHU) employed locally specific 
strategies for engaging or staying in touch 
with priority populations. 
Communications were distributed to 
different priority population groups (e.g. 
guidance to shelters, congregate 
settings). SMDHU worked with social 
services, priority population planning 
committees, and individuals on a one-on-
one basis to ensure:

 Mandatory requirements were met re: 
case and contact management

 Heat planning for priority populations 
and assessment of existing 
infrastructure

 Established testing options for priority 
populations (e.g. lower income), 
assessment centre outreach options, 
and worked with District of Muskoka 
to help with promotion of testing

 Communication strategy for priority 

population notification system

 Funeral homes included in listserv

 Worked with primary care and 
hospitals to establish local assessment 
centres prior to provincial direction 
and the Central Region Ontario Health

Timiskaming Health Unit convened a 
Community Support Collaborative for the 
purpose of identifying priority population 
needs arising from COVID-19, and 
partnered to access funds that provided 
cleaning supplies, PPE, and Plexiglas 
partitions for private transportation 
providers in rural communities without 
public transit.

Facilitated by Timiskaming Health Unit, 
the Community Support Collaborative 
meets weekly to identify and address 
priority population needs arising from 
COVID-19 and related public health 
measures. Initiatives linked to this 
collaborative include:
 Timiskaming Connections Initiative, 

including a phone line to link 
volunteers with those in need of 
support related to COVID-19 and 
public health measures.

 Partnered to access funds and provide 
masks/face coverings to those with 
barriers to access. Includes a wide 

range of community partners serving 
as depots across the district including 
small, rural areas.

 Sourced funding and coordinated 
masks/face coverings for distribution 
to passengers with all transportation 
providers.

 Partnered to access funds to address 
the digital divide; a pre-existing equity 
issue exacerbated by COVID-19. This 
initiative will provide technology, 
Internet, and digital health literacy 
skills to individuals in need.

York Region Public Health, in 
collaboration with shelters, identified an 
increase of domestic violence rates and 
developed resources to support this 
population with guidance for individuals 
experiencing abuse during heightened 
times of isolation. 

York Region Public Health supported 
local shelters via the provision of 6600 
surgical masks as well as provided 
guidance and recommendations for the 
establishment of both transitional 
housing and an isolation shelter for 
priority populations along with 
emergency personal protective 
equipment kits

5
Page 78 of 139

Page 83 of 159



Partnerships
Hamilton Public Health Services worked 
with local Indigenous service providers to 
support the safe opening of various 
community-based supports; including a 
Friendship Centre, licensed child care and 
health care centre, as well as launch an 
Indigenous peer-to-peer COVID-19 phone 
line to access public health information on 
COVID.

Hamilton’s Health Sector Emergency 
Management Committee is responsible 
for a collaborative multi-agency response 
and is chaired by Hamilton Public 
Health’s MOH. This group developed a 
novel approach to assessment centres in 
the city – the collaborative model is a 
partnership between hospitals, primary 
care, public health and the City of 
Hamilton.

"Planning moved quickly, and there was a 
high level of trust between 
[organizations] despite uncertain times 
and at times uncertain funding resources. 
We just made it happen."- Hamilton 
Health Sector Emergency Management 
Committee/Hamilton Health Team
debrief

Hamilton Public Health Services 
collaborated with partner hospitals to 

complete virtual COVID-19 IPAC audits 
with all long term care facilities and 
retirement homes in the city. This work 
assessed COVID-19 preparedness in these 
facilities and prepared partner hospitals 
for rapid response should outbreak 
assistance be needed.

Hamilton Public Health Services 
provided extensive IPAC support to 
community partners, including staff 
educational webinars and IPAC 
assessments for the Ministry of Children, 
Community and Social Services, bi-
weekly calls with Hamilton-Wentworth 
Detention Centre, consultation and IPAC 
assessments for the housing and shelter 
sector and congregate settings, proactive 
inspections of all licensed childcare 
settings, and consultations with 
workplaces for safe re-opening.

KFL&A Public Health initiated and 
coordinated the emergency response to 
ensure access to COVID-19 testing with 
health sector and municipal partners (e.g., 
primary care, paramedics, acute care and 
municipalities)

City partners have shared a strong 
support of the way public health has been 
working with the municipality and 

encouraged Ottawa Public Health to 
“keep doing great things” with in local 
collaboration with city partners-–this has 
been highlighted as a key theme of the 
“successes achieved together.” – City of 
Ottawa feedback

Ottawa Public Health’s relationship with 
the City of Ottawa has enabled success in 
countless initiatives with its municipal 
partners, from redeploying city staff and 
infrastructure to the response, working 
rapidly to implement a bylaw for indoor 
masking, proactively building a safer 
approach for public transit and 
emergency child care centres, and 
working as a member of the city’s Human 
Needs Task Force to plan for food 
security, housing, transportation, 
volunteer services, fundraising, and 
psychosocial supports.

6
Page 79 of 139

Page 84 of 159



Partnerships
Public Health Sudbury & Districts
provided reliable information that local 
businesses, community organizations, 
and partners used to make best decisions 
for staff and the community:
 “We as an organization depend on 

public health webpages, news releases 
and phone calls for the advice we need 
to give the people we support a better 
quality of life.”

 “Collaboration with senior leaders to 
help make informed decisions related to 
staffing, procedure, etc.”

North Bay Parry Sound District Health 
Unit partnered with a local construction 
company to develop COVID-19 safety 
protocols well in advance of these being 
asked for by the Ministry.

North Bay Parry Sound District Health 
Unit provided enhanced surveillance data 
to local hospital partners, who were 
provided with weekly, customized 
syndromic surveillance reports that 
alerted hospitals when surges in specific 
syndromes were detected through the 
Emergency Department. Reports also 
included testing rates, outbreaks, and 
cases for their specific catchment area. 

North Bay Parry Sound District Health 
Unit Public Health Inspectors offered 
training, education, and 
recommendations for infection 
prevention and control to management at 
Nipissing Mental Health Housing and 
Support Services, and others supporting 
the local temporary homeless shelter. 

Peel Public Health, in bringing public 
health expertise to a Regional integrated 
response table, was able to quickly initiate 
surveillance screening in Long-Term Care 
(LTC) homes and complete screening of 
all residents and staff at 28 LTCs one 
week ahead of the provincially mandated 
deadline. This response table was then 
able to quickly pivot into directing 
expanded community testing in 
workplaces and areas of high incidence.  

Public Health Sudbury & Districts has a 
First Nations Community Partners Table 
to discuss community needs during the 
pandemic, share resources, and help 
make connections with other sectors 
(e.g., to support re-opening plans, 
surveillance testing, and community 
pandemic response plans). 

Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit’s 
past pandemic planning enabled a strong, 
collaborative relationship with 
municipalities when responding to 
COVID-19. Weekly teleconferences 
enabled a coordinated response to a 
number of challenges, including public 
crowding on beaches and use of face 
coverings in indoor public spaces.

Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit 
documented many examples of strong 
working relationships with community 
partners (e.g. hospitals, City of Barrie, 
Indigenous groups) including 
teleconferences with local municipal and 
health care system partners, partnerships 
with assessment centres, homeless 
shelter operations in hotels, local PPE 
donation management strategy, and 
strong relationships developed with 
Family Health Teams.

Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit’s
MOH acted as co-chair with the Central 
Region of Ontario Health to liaise with the 
MOHs of the public health units in the 
region in order to inform the Region and 
its health care leader of local public health 
responses, and to help coordinate actions 
among the players.

7
Page 80 of 139

Page 85 of 159



Partnerships
Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit’s 
MOH sat at the provincial Public Health 
Measures Table and liaised between the 
CMOH office and local MOHs in Central 
East Region on the changes in the 
provincially lead control measures.

Southwestern Public Health Units 
collaborated together with local Ontario 
Health partners to create epidemiology 
summaries for the region to inform local 
Health Care System Planning.

A Testing Policy Advisory Council was 

established early in the pandemic in the 

Southwest. Made of partners from 

Southwestern Public Health Units and 

Ontario Health, the Council developed 

testing guidance to ensure that testing 

was implemented in a fair 

and consistent manner across the 

southwest, taking into consideration 

local/regional capacity.

Timiskaming Health Unit convened 

health system partners weekly to provide 

situation updates and provide clarification 

on guidance and directives:

 "From the Hospital perspective, most 

decisions made by health service 

partners have an impact on our 

operations. The coordination by THU to 

many, if not all, players at the same 

table at the same time, hearing the 

same message, enhanced our 

understanding and response" – Health 

system partner

As part of the structure of the Regional 

Municipality of York, York Region Public 

Health (YRPH) has been able to leverage 

many partnerships embedded within the 

regional structure like social services, 

paramedic, and seniors’ services; enabling 

a collaborative and coordinated approach 

to the response from all service delivery 

areas. Pre- existing relationships with key 

partners in each municipality (i.e. 

Community Emergency Management 

Coordinators) allowed for close 

collaboration. YRPH collaborated rapidly 

with Ontario Health/LHIN and local 

hospitals to support the IPAC extender 

program to provide timely assessments 

and education. Partnership was also in 

place between YRPH, LHIN and the 

Ministry of Children, Community and 

Social Services to establish a coordinated 

approach to personal protective 

requirements.

8
Page 81 of 139

Page 86 of 159



Coordination
Algoma Public Health coordinated 

weekly teleconferences with the 

Community Emergency Management 

Coordinators of Algoma’s 21 

municipalities. Partners identified major 

sources of community health risk and 

worked together to communicate and 

mitigate risk. Early groundwork in 

emergency preparedness meant that days 

before Canada issued mandatory 

quarantine orders, Algoma returning 

travellers were already receiving and 

following local public health advice to stay 

home for 14 days, and they were well-

supported to do this thanks to delivery 

services of groceries and essentials which 

were rapidly set up by Algoma 

municipalities.

Eastern Ontario Health Unit, Leeds, 

Grenville and Lanark District Health 

Unit, Renfrew County and District 

Health, and Ottawa Public Health

coordinated to develop a mandatory 

masking policy to ensure consistency 

across the region and avoid duplication of 

efforts, with each public health unit then 

moving forward to adapt within their own 

local context. 

Medical Officers of Health in the Greater 

Toronto and Hamilton area have worked 

together during the pandemic to share 

information and where possible, 

coordinate their responses given the 

mobility of individuals within their 

geographic area. 

KFL&A Public Health has coordinated 

many initiatives over the course of the 

pandemic:

 Held weekly  meetings with Medical 

Directors of all LTC and RH as well as 

weekly meetings with municipal 

partners.

 Ran an educational session for all area 

primary care physicians and conducted 

two continuing professional 

development webinars for area 

physicians.

 Coordinated enforcement activities in 

their region by bringing together 

Kingston Police, OPP and City of 

Kingston Bylaw Officers to reduce 

duplication of enforcement activities.  

 Planned to conduct table top exercises 

with large institutions in their region: 

Queen’s University, municipalities and 

other community services.

KFL&A Public Health worked with 

municipal partners, including mayors, 

wardens and CAOs to implement and 

enforce the Section 22 mask order.

Since January 2020, the Ontario Public 

Health Emergency Managers Network

shared updates, resources, consultations, 

and professional development 

information amongst its members to 

support local responses.

The community and partners relied on 

public health statistics to keep them 

informed on the status of cases. Also, 

public health provided consistent 

messaging coordinated across the North 

East:
 “The epidemiological statistics were 
very helpful. The collaboration between 
APH, PPH and PHSD so that we may have 
a consistent message in our schools is also 
helpful.” – Northeastern community 
partner speaking of the coordination 
between Algoma Public Health, 
Porcupine Health Unit, and Public 
Health Sudbury & Districts.

9
Page 82 of 139

Page 87 of 159



Coordination
Public Health Units in the North East 

worked together to share frameworks 

and templates for detailed 

epidemiological reports.

Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit

coordinated and supported other public 

health units in conducting rapid reviews of 

literature regarding the harms to physical, 

mental, and social wellbeing resulting 

from public health measures, both 

population-wide and from a health equity 

perspective. Findings will be used to 

inform enhanced efforts to help mitigate 

these harms, where possible, for the 

remainder of the pandemic. 

Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit

played a lead role in planning 

coordination, liaison work and 

collaborative work with assessment 

centres, homeless shelters, Ontario 

Health Teams, and hospitals.

York Region Public Health (YRPH) 
provided ongoing infection prevention 
and control support to congregate 
settings in partnerships with York Region 
Social Services, Ministry of Health, and 
other stakeholders.  YRPH has also 

coordinated with private sector 
businesses such as corporate food 
operators to relay messaging, ensure 
policy compliance, and garner support in 
preventing further spread. In addition, 
ongoing coordination between the 
Regional Environmental Services 
Department and external stakeholders 
was led by YRPH to participate in pilot 
research and testing for COVID-19 in 
wastewater.

York Region Public Health (YRPH) 
partnered with local community partners 
(i.e. municipality), paramedic services and 
Ontario Health to host a mobile testing 
day in Georgina. In addition, YRPH 
coordinated a Customer Experience 
journey mapping with local assessment 
centre which has ensured open 
communication channels with hospitals 
and public health and allowed for quick 
implementation of changes in practice 
such as changing screening criteria. YRPH 
and the hospitals continue to work 
together to improve the customer 
experience of accessing testing to ensure 
York Region residents access testing 
when and where needed.

York Region Public Health (YRPH) 
coordinated weekly joint meetings with 

the Public and Catholic School Boards to 
support school reopening strategies. 
Similarly, YRPH and Social Services 
partnered with childcare settings to 
ensure preparedness support is provided 
to these stakeholders to assist in the safe 
reopening of these facilities.

In addition to resource sharing and 
coordination, York Region Public Health,
along with other public health units, 
combined efforts to implement a 
coordinated approach to responding to 
workplace-related investigations to 
identify effective public health measures 
for these unique investigations and to 
enable timely information sharing for 
impacted public health units.

10
Page 83 of 139

Page 88 of 159



Workforce
“I’ve been meaning to reach out to you and 
say a big thanks and tell you how 
wonderful your staff are at APH. The 
support for reopening [child care centre 
location] as a whole and previous to that 
for emergency child care was beyond 
excellent! A special shout out to [APH 
employees] who are our Inspectors and 
have answered all of our 
many, many questions!” – Child care 
centre operator feedback to Algoma 
Public Health.

"From the time I received the call that I was 
positive for COVID-19, I ALWAYS felt like I 
had the support of Algoma Public 
Health...Having gone through the 
experience, the community should have 
complete faith in the process - I have never 
answered so many questions in my life and 
to say that your case management was 
thorough is an understatement. The nurses 
on your front line were remarkable...I truly 
felt like they cared about my physical and 
mental wellbeing.” – Feedback from 
community member

While many health system partners were 
scaling back and experiencing lower 
volumes, Huron Perth Public Health and 
Brantford County Public Health rapidly 

scaled up from a Monday to Friday 8:30 -
4:30 and 24/7 on-call operation to Monday 
to Friday two shifts with evenings, 
weekend shifts, and 24/7 on-call in order 
to respond to the need for support to the 
public, partners, and stakeholders. 

“Camaraderie - in these trying times, 
[Public Health Nurses] have come 
together, problem solved, encouraged, 
and helped one another. It's been very 
inspiring and makes me proud to be a part 
of the COVID-19 response” - Hamilton 
Public Health employee

KFL&A Public Health staff were cross-
trained and deployed to implement work 
of the newly established COVID-19 
functional units, including an Assessment 
Centre, Call Centre, Case and Contact 
Management, IPAC, and Enforcement. 

KFL&A Public Health created nurse and 
public health inspector teams to provide 
sector specific IPAC guidance to high risk 
congregate settings, e.g., LTC/RH, 
childcare, and correctional institutions. 

KFL&A Public Health has implemented 
CCM using a combination of nurse and 
non-nurse staff. 

Ottawa Public Health has been in 
enhanced operations since January 28, 
2020. By early June, >75% of staff were 
deployed to the response and many new 
team members were hired to address the 
pandemic. The team responded to >2000 
cases, traced >7000 contacts, managed 
>30 outbreaks, collaborated on testing 
>20,000 individuals in long term care 
homes and congregate settings, fielded 
>24,000 inquiries from the community, 
and had >250,000 likes, comments, and 
shares on social media. 

“The ability of the IMS structure to be 
flexible and responsive to the emerging 
needs was extremely helpful. Training by 
the Rapid Response Team helped to ready 
people. I think we did amazing work, and I 
am very proud to have been part of it.”

- Ottawa Public Health employee

Ottawa Public Health recruited nurses 
via a Registered Nurses Association of 
Ontario call-out, hired 4th year Nursing 
Students, and retired Public Health 
Nurses. 

11
Page 84 of 139

Page 89 of 159



Workforce
The ability to adjust and scale the call 
centre processes, tools, and workforce, 
along with the various modes on media 
interaction highlighted the flexibility of 
the North Bay Parry Sound District 
Health Unit. This was necessary when 
comparing the challenges and addressing 
gaps of decisions made provincially vs. 
local interpretation and 
implementation. For example, 99% of 
staff members have been consistently 
using Microsoft Teams, which has 
enabled the workforce to work remotely, 
efficiently communicate and share 
information, and collaborate internally 
and externally with health care services in 
their district.

For the North Bay Parry Sound District 
Health Unit, a local connection to the 
communities helped inform the COVID-19 
topics that resulted in the most inquiries, 
which directly informed the work of the 
Communications Department. Having 
locally informed data allowed for strategic 
messaging in specific pockets of the 
district.

At Public Health Sudbury & Districts,
over ¾ of staff members have been 
redeployed to support the pandemic 
response. Public health nurses, 

inspectors, dietitians, nutritionists, dental 
hygienists, health promoters, and support 
staff refocused their efforts to pandemic 
response or adapted essential public 
health programs and services.

Community partner feedback about the 
professionalism of Public Health Sudbury 
& Districts staff, their immediate 
responses, provision of accurate 
information, and following-up on each 
situation:

 “Public health Sudbury comes with 
professional staff who have many 
resources for organizations and people 
alike.”

 “I have been really impressed with how 
helpful, thorough, and friendly every 
member of the public health team has 
been!”

 “Thank you for the long hours and 
tireless work to try to get us through the 
pandemic. I know we have smart and 
innovative people who work for us to 
come up with solutions for us to live 
during this pandemic. We can get 
through this together.”

 “Great job!! Each and every one is to be 
commended!! Keep up the great 
work...and thank you all for your service 
to our community.”

 “Personally, their response team. They 

received a call, they responded 
immediately. They gave accurate 
information and they followed up on 
each situation that I was involved in.”    
- Community partner feedback

Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit
formally activated the agency’s Incidence 
Management System on January 24, 
2020, and the agency began to 
implement the Infectious Diseases 
Emergency Response Plan. With the 
changes in the agency’s operations and 
modifications in work, staff were 
redeployed to the Infectious Disease (ID) 
and Health Connection programs along 
with the provision of training, support, 
working at home, and staff recruitment. 

Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit
developed a COVID-19 Business 
Continuity Plan (BCP) to manage the 
redeployment, recruitment, training, and 
repatriation (of staff back to their base 
programs). The BCP was not designed for 
the scope and scale of the COVID-19 
pandemic, and thus had to be remade 
during the pandemic for this application. 
The BCP informed the subsequent 
development of a modified 2020 budget.

12
Page 85 of 139

Page 90 of 159



Workforce
Timiskaming Health Unit’s diverse 
workforce was able to tap into affiliate 
networks for timely sharing of 
information, tools, and processes. This 
supported agile response and reduced 
duplication of effort during peak response 
time. OPHEN, ODPH, APHEO, Business 
Administrators. This included assisting in 
areas to which they were redeployed.

York Region Public Health (YRPH) 
created a workgroup focusing on children 
and youth to ensure parents, caregivers, 
schools, and health care professionals had 
information and resources focused on the 
health and wellbeing of this population. In 
addition, YRPH has invested in 
developing a highly skilled infection 
prevention and control team. This has 
proved to be extremely valuable in quickly 
mobilizing these resources in providing 
rapid support to many stakeholders 
during the COVID-19 pandemic response. 
YRPH provided support to their workforce 
via the activation of the Public Health 
Emergency Support Group providing peer 
to peer support for mental health support.

Operating within an Incident 
Management Structure (IMS), York 
Region Public Health has been in active 

response structure since January 23, 2020 
with enhanced monitoring and 
surveillance in place prior. Throughout the 
duration of the response, YRPH has 
gradually redeployed public health staff 
to meet the operational requirements of 
the response with over 70% of staff 
redeployed at the peak. Efforts were 
made to ensure continuity of critical core 
services while balancing the response.

York Region Public Health has also 
greatly benefited from their position 
within the Regional Municipality of York, 
where an additional 67 staff were 
redeployed to directly support the 
response (many with unique skill sets such 
as Data Analytics and Visualization 
Services) as well as additional non-direct 
support from other areas (i.e. Human 
Resources, Property Services, Information 
Technology Services, Access York). 

13
Page 86 of 139

Page 91 of 159



Digital solutions

14

Halton Region Public Health worked 

with other departments at Halton 

Region to look for technology to support 

case and contact management for 

COVID-19 so that staff could begin 

working from home. Selection and the 

first phase of implementation of a new 

electronic record had occurred when the 

province began to review different 

systems. The province chose the same 

platform that Halton staff had already 

vetted and Halton staff have provided 

much support to the province on the 

planning and implementation of the 

provincial CCM tool that has been 

launched this summer.

Hamilton Public Health Services

adapted existing technology used for 

routine inspections of food premises. 

Inspectors record COVID-19 IPAC 

observations and education data into the 

existing Hedgehog Inspection System to 

ensure all information is stored together.

KFL&A Public Health created a public 

facing dashboard to communicate 

COVID-19 case identification, 

assessment and testing updates to the 

community. 

KFL&A Public Health has worked to

create an internal capacity prediction 

dashboard to inform staff allocation 

during surge response.

KFL&A Public Health, with other health 

units, has contributed toward the 

development and implementation of the 

provincial CCM tool 

KFL&A Public Health, working with the 

Office of the CMOH, enabled the real-

time capture of suspected COVID-19 

emergency department visits across the 

province in the Acute Care Enhanced 

Surveillance (ACES) system and built the 

Pandemic Tracker as a public tool 

(https://www.kflaphi.ca/aces-pandemic-

tracker/). 

KFL&A Public Health’s community 

COVID-19 dashboard 

(https://www.kflaph.ca/en/healthy-

living/status-of-cases-in-kfla.aspx), has

received an average of 6000 hits per day, 

and provides timely data on the status of 

cases, assessment, and testing.

Middlesex-London Health Unit

developed Azure software and several 

other local public health units were able 

to use this platform to facilitate the 

COVID response.

Ottawa Public Health developed a 

dynamic disease reporting system (the 

COVID-19 Ottawa Database known as 

“The COD”), adapted from a system 

used in Newfoundland and Labrador that 

supports local case management and 

contact tracing Building from this 

database has led to development of 

novel epidemiological methods and 

technology to detect potential clusters 

earlier and mobilize resources to 

investigate.

Ottawa Public Health’s information 

technology team built a digital platform 

for daily screening of symptoms of 

COVID-19 in employees to help protect 

the health and safety of their workforce.

“Evidence based information, great 

graphics, informative without being 

preachy, and a wicked sense of humour. 

It’s everything a public health 

organization should be!” - Community 

member feedback on Ottawa Public 

Health’s social media presence

Page 87 of 139

Page 92 of 159



Digital solutions

15

Public Health Sudbury & Districts has 

been proactive, active, and responsive 

on social media. Video and evidence 

based information is valued and trusted:

 “Appreciate the health unit's presence 

on social media and the quick 

communication re: new cases in our 

area.”

 “Excellent media and social media 

presence with clear, succinct, and 

recent evidence-based principles.”

Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit

was well prepared with a pre-existing 

database to capture contact 

management and for surveillance 

reporting. IT already had technology for 

virtual conferencing (Skype for Business) 

to enable staff working from home; 

moved to VPN for all staff.

Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit’s

website supported the distribution of 

information, guidance, and direction to 

communities, as well as received 

communication from community 

members (in addition to the community 

Health Connection line). 

Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit

had frequent media events (5 times 

weekly in April), where the MOH held 

press conferences via Facebook Live 

from his home office, then posted 

content on YouTube. 

York Region Public Health adopted 

many digital solutions to allow for the 

automation of data visualization where 

various datasets (i.e. iPHIS, OLIS, 

assessment centre data) are linked to 

provide the final publicly accessible 

dashboards. 

York Region Public Health (YRPH) 

implemented an outbreak investigation 

system to better navigate the 

complexities of outbreak investigations 

and allow for linkages amongst cases. 

This has allowed for the provision of 

evidence based public health measures 

to settings in active outbreak. YRPH has 

collaborated with a local company 

specialized in big data analysis to 

support in evidence based local 

forecasting for anticipated 

spread/transmission of COVID-19.

York Region Public Health adopted a 

crowdsourcing approach through the 

implementation of an online client 

survey linked to an educational video on 

contact tracing. The aim of this approach 

was support local health unit in 

conducting a timely and efficient 

investigation for individuals testing 

positive.

Machine learning was developed by York 

Region Public Health to optimize the 

utility and interpretation of OLIS lab 

results data to support the automation 

of reporting and timely case follow up.

Page 88 of 139

Page 93 of 159



SUSTAINING THE PUBLIC HEALTH RESPONSE

Local public health leadership has been critical to 
protecting health and tailoring responses to meet 
the needs of our communities during the first peak

SIX THEMES IDENTIFIED

• Public health measures prevented illnesses and deaths that would 
have overwhelmed our health care system and remain a threat as 
seen in other jurisdictions

• Public health leadership brought communities together to flatten 
the epidemic curve using preventive measures that continue to be 
a mainstay of the response

• Experience and technical training in public health emergencies 
and health protection prepared local public health to respond and 
built on existing pandemic preparedness plans

• The most effective system in a public health emergency relies on 
independent local public health authorities that can leverage 
strong partnerships and community knowledge to adapt direction 
coordinated at the provincial level

• Public health holds a unique, established, and trusted position 
that allows collaboration with municipalities, schools, childcare 
settings, businesses, social services including congregate settings, 
health care and institutions, media, and community organizations 
to effectively shape local response

• Provincial and regional coordination is critical to supporting the 
strong leadership and response undertaken by local public health 
units and boards of health

• Pandemic response required rapid mobilization and scaling up of a 
skilled public health workforce that will need ongoing 
investment to respond to resurgence and increasing complexity of 
case management and contact tracing

• Public health innovation and adoption of new digital solutions to 
improve effectiveness and efficiency have been vital to enhancing 
widespread detection and containment efforts 

Public health system evaluation and lessons from the first peak of COVID-19
A report on behalf of the Council of Ontario Medical Officers of Health | August 2020

Prevention and preparedness

Health equity

Partnerships

Coordination

Workforce

Digital solutions

SUMMARY OF KEY FINDINGS

Local public health units have spent months 
leading the response to the COVID-19 pandemic 
across sectors in their communities

Findings from this evaluation can be used to protect Ontario's 
communities by:

• Building on public health system response that should 
continue or be enhanced during resurgence and future peaks

• Informing health system planning and preparedness for 
resurgence of COVID-19 and the upcoming influenza season

• Leveraging the strengths of the local public health system 
connections with community to ensure cross sector 
interventions

METHODS
• All Medical Officers of Health were invited to participate in the 

evaluation via email

• Further input received from all COMOH membership at two 
meetings

• 17/34 (50%) local public health units participated (60% rural, 
40% urban), sharing insights on >100 local initiatives 

• Evaluations and continuous quality improvement processes 
carried out by local public health units through reviews, 
surveys, and interviews with their teams, the public, 
community partners, and stakeholders across sectors were 
been incorporated into this report

Thank you for the long hours and tireless work to try to get us through the 
pandemic. I know we have smart and innovative people who work for us to come 

up with solutions for us to live during this pandemic. We can get through this 
together.

- Community partner feedback

OPPORTUNITIES

Local public health must provide 
ongoing leadership and guidance in all essential 
public health functions

 Local public health must build on partnerships and 
collaboration across sectors to address new and complex 
community challenges such as return to school, increased 
demand for health services, increase in visitors to long term 
care homes, re-opening of businesses, and larger social 
gatherings

 There must be investment in local public health workforce to 
allow for surge capacity needed for increasing complexity of 
pandemic response and maintaining critical core public health 
services 

 There must be increased resources for IPAC and outbreak 
management in higher-risk settings and priority populations 
to minimize severe illness that would strain the health care 
system

 Local public health expertise and connections with 
community must be capitalized on at regional and provincial 
tables

 Roles of key health system players must be clarified and 
mutually respected for maximum health gains 

 New technologies must be developed and adapted to support 
case management, contact tracing, and outbreak 
investigations so local public health units can enhance 
effectiveness despite growing complexity

 Innovative technologies must be explored to help with 
advanced planning, forecasting, and operational response in 
dealing with resurgence and other respiratory illnesses

Key questions:  
1. What worked well during the first peak?
2. What could be improved?
3. What should continue or be enhanced?
4. What else should we consider for future COVID-19 

planning and influenza in the coming months?

Page 89 of 139

Page 94 of 159



Page 90 of 139

Page 95 of 159



Page 91 of 139

Page 96 of 159



Page 92 of 139

Page 97 of 159



Page 93 of 139

Page 98 of 159



Page 94 of 139

Page 99 of 159



Page 95 of 139

Page 100 of 159



Page 96 of 139

Page 101 of 159



Page 97 of 139

Page 102 of 159



Page 98 of 139

Page 103 of 159



Page 99 of 139

Page 104 of 159



Algoma Public Health
COVID 19 - 402

July 31, 2020

Account Name Curr YTD BGT YTD Variance Annual Funds
BGT Remaining

Revenue

Expenses
Management Salaries and Wages 598,183 0 -598,183 0 -598,183
Non-Union Salaries and Wages 138,467 0 -138,467 0 -138,467
CUPE Salaries and Wages 384,810 0 -384,810 0 -384,810
ONA Salaries and Wages 1,054,070 0 -1,054,070 0 -1,054,070
Travel Food/Lodging/Other 190 0 -190 0 -190
Program Materials and Supplies 25,077 0 -25,077 0 -25,077
Computer Equipment Purchased 17,463 0 -17,463 0 -17,463
Telecommunications 13,171 0 -13,171 0 -13,171
Media 17,487 0 -17,487 0 -17,487
Janitorial 27,057 0 -27,057 0 -27,057
Security 1,514 0 -1,514 0 -1,514

2,277,488 0 -2,277,488 0 -2,277,488

Surplus/(Deficit) -2,277,488 0 2,277,488 0 2,277,488

Page 100 of 139

Page 105 of 159



Page 101 of 139

Page 106 of 159



Page 102 of 139

Page 107 of 159



Page 103 of 139

Page 108 of 159



Page 104 of 139

Page 109 of 159



Page 105 of 139

Page 110 of 159



Page 106 of 139

Page 111 of 159



Page 107 of 139

Page 112 of 159



     Briefing Note 

www.algomapublichealth.com 
 
 

Strategic Directions: Improve Health Equity  Collaborate Effectively  Be Accountable  Enhance Employee Engagement 
 

To: Algoma Public Health Finance and Audit Committee  
 
From: Dr. Marlene Spruyt, MOH/CEO 
 Justin Pino, CFO/Director of Operations 
 
Date: September 23, 2020    
 
Re: 2020 Levy Increase Reimbursement 
 
 

 For Information  For Discussion  For a Decision 
 
 
 
ISSUE:   
 
On August 21st, 2020, APH received its 2020-2021 Public Health funding approval letters 
from the Ministry of Health and Long-Term Care.  The letter indicated that APH would 
receive one-time mitigation funding in the amount $1,037,800 for both the 2020 and 
2021 funding years.  This funding is designed to ensure that municipalities do not 
experience any increase as a result of the previously announced cost-sharing changes.  
APH’s 2020 levy increase to contributing municipalities was a direct result of the 
previously announced cost-sharing changes the Ministry announced in 2019. 
Management is seeking Board of Health direction as to how to implement the Province’s 
intent on minimizing the financial impact to municipalities.       
 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
In April 2019 the Provincial Government announced that as of January 1st, 2020 the 
provincial funding share would be reduced from 75% to 70% while municipalities will 
contribute 30% from 25%.  Additionally, the majority of programs that were previously 
100% provincially funded would be cost-shared at the new ratios.  To help provide 
additional stability as municipalities began to adapt to shifting funding models, the 
Government announced they would provide one-time mitigation funding in 2020 to assist 
all public health units and municipalities to manage this increase.  Municipalities were 
protected from any cost increases resulting from this new cost-sharing formula by 
capping the increase at no more than 10% of existing municipal costs (based on 2018 
expenditures).  As a result, APH management budgeted approximately $808,535 in 
expected provincial one-time mitigation funding.   
 
The levy increase associated with APH’s 2020 Operating and Capital Budget was a direct 
result of the changes in the funding formula.  There was no portion of the levy increase 

Page 108 of 139

Page 113 of 159



Briefing Note  Page 2 of 2 
 
associated with inflationary pressures (which some health units may have included in 
their respective levy increases).   
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 

1) That the Board of Health understands and respects that any levy increase in the 
year’s 2020 and 2021 are not to be associated with transitioning to achieving a 
cost-shared funding formula of 70% provincially funded and 30% municipally 
funded and 

2) That, as a result of the 2020 levy increase being a direct result of the previously 
announced cost-sharing changes, the Board of Health for the District of Algoma 
reimburse contributing municipalities a total $229,265 to be apportioned based on 
2016 Census data.   
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 
 
There is no financial impact to the Board of Health. 
 
The incremental increase in the levy associated with adjusting the cost-sharing allocation 
will now be funded by the province through additional mitigation funding.  This 
essentially reverses the Ministry’s previously communicated plan of adjusting the cost-
sharing split to 70% provincially funded and 30% municipal funded to the traditional 
75% - 25% ratios.  
 
APH had budgeted $808,535 in expected provincial one-time mitigation for 2020 but will 
receive $1,037,800 in provincial mitigation funding.  The increase in provincial funding 
of $229,265 is designed to offset the increase in the municipal levy that was associated 
with transitioning towards a new cost-sharing formula.  Essentially, instead of the Board 
of Health receiving these from contributing municipalities, the Board will now be 
receiving these dollars from the province with no change in the 2020 funding figures 
(only the source of the funding has changed).      
 
 
CONTACT: 
J. Pino, Chief Financial Officer/Director of Operations 
 

Page 109 of 139

Page 114 of 159



Governance Committee Meeting 
September 9, 2020 

 
Attendees: 
Deborah Graystone - Chair 
Heather O'Brien 
Louise Caicco Tett 
Lee Mason 
Brent Rankin 
  
APHU Executive 
Marlene Spruyt - MOH/CEO 
Jennifer Loo - AMOH 
Tania Caputo - Board Secretary 
 
 
The following Board Policies were discussed amended and approved by the Governance 
Committee: 
 
Policy #02-05-015 - Conflict of Interest 
 
There was a robust discussion regarding the inclusion of some of the criteria from the Municipal 
Conflict of Interest Act.  Some of the details of that legislation were integrated into the 
document but some of it was deemed not as appropriate for this organization.  It was decided 
to keep the actual and perceived conflict wording as is.  Minor wordsmithing was made and the 
policy was approved by the committee. 
 
Policy #02-05-080 - Performance Evaluation for MOH/CEO 
 
Questions regarding the organizational "work plan" that had been integrated into this policy 
was removed as it was confusing and it was thought the focus should be the MOH's personal 
professional development goals and objectives.  Discussion around the work plan brought our 
attention to  the need for an annual review with the board regarding this plan.  Elements of the 
work plan are currently brought to the board through the MOH/CEO reports however it was 
thought that an annual overall review shared with the board would be helpful. 
There was also debate about the presence of the Director of Human Resources being involved 
in the performance evaluation of a colleague. However it was thought that the expertise 
regarding human resource best practice issues were important to ensure compliance. 
 
Policy #02-05-086 - Sponsorship of Charitable Organizations 
  
Some discussion regarding this policy but no substantive changes made.  
 

Page 110 of 139

Page 115 of 159



Policy #02-05-035 - Continuing Education for Board Members 
 
The committee had a discussion regarding selection of members for education.  Although there 
has never been an issue with too many people wanting to attend an education session there 
was a question on participant selection.   
There was discussion regarding not sending a novice member who may not have clear insight 
into the needs of the organization as yet or members who are in their last months of their term 
of office.  Although not mentioned in the policy these factors and the needs of the board 
member are considered in participant selection. 

Page 111 of 139

Page 116 of 159



PAGE: 1 of 3 REFERENCE #: 02-05-015 
 

Algoma Public Health – Policy and Procedure Manual – Board Policies and Bylaws 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE #: 02-05-015 
    
DATE: Original: Jan 18, 1995 SECTION: Policies 
 Revised: Oct 28, 2015   
 Revised: Jan 24, 2018 SUBJECT:  Conflict of Interest 
 Revised: Jun 24, 2020 

Revised: Sep 23, 2020 
  

    

POLICY: 

Each member of the Board of Health has an obligation to avoid ethical, legal, financial or other conflicts of 
interest and to ensure that their activities and interests do not conflict with their obligations to the Board of 
Health of the Algoma District Health Unit (operating as Algoma Public Health) or its welfare. 

It is the responsibility of the individual to disclose any conflicts of interest to the meeting.  

If there is any doubt as to a perception of conflict, the member shall discuss with the Chair and/or Board of 
Health for direction. 

A Board member should not use information that is not public knowledge, obtained as a result of their 
appointment, for personal benefit. 

No Board member should divulge confidential information obtained as a result of their appointment unless 
legally required to do so. 

A Board member shall remove oneself from the Board of Health if employment at APH is being sought. 

 

The purpose of the Conflict of Interest Policy is to: 

i) Assist individual Board members in determining when their participation in a Board 
decision/discussion has the potential to be used for personal or private benefit, financial or 
otherwise;  
 

ii) Protect the integrity of the Board as a whole and its members by following the conflict of Interest 
Policy and Procedures. 
 

Definitions:  
A conflict of interest situation arises where a member either on their own behalf or while acting for, 
by, with or through another, has any direct or indirect non-pecuniary or pecuniary interest in any 
contract or transaction with the Board or in any contract or transaction that is reasonably likely to 
be affected by a decision of the Board.  Where the Board member or their close relative or friend or 
affiliated entity uses the Board member’s position with APH to advance their personal or financial 
interests. 

Actual conflict of interest: A situation where a Board member has a private or personal interest that is 
sufficiently connected to their duties and responsibilities as a Board member that it influences the exercise 
of these duties and responsibilities. 
 

Page 112 of 139

Page 117 of 159



PAGE: 2 of 3 REFERENCE #: 02-05-015 
 
Perceived conflict of interest: A situation where reasonably well-informed persons could have a 
reasonable belief that a Board member may have an actual conflict even where that is not the case, in fact. 
 
Indirect pecuniary interest: A member has an indirect pecuniary interest in any matter in which the 
council or local Board, as the case may be, is concerned, if; 
 (a) the member or their nominee, 
 (i) is a shareholder in, or a director or senior officer of, a corporation that does not offer its securities 

to the public, 
 (ii) has a controlling interest in or is a director or senior officer of, a corporation that offers its securities 

to the public, or 
 (iii) is a member of a body, that has a pecuniary interest in the matter; or 
 
  (b)  the member is a partner of a person or is in the employment of a person or body that has a pecuniary 

interest in the matter. 
 
 
PROCEDURE: 
 

 
1) At the beginning of every Board/Committee meeting, the Chair shall ask and have recorded in the 

minutes whether any Board member has a conflict to declare in respect to any agenda item. 
 

2) If a Board member believes that they have an actual or perceived conflict of interest in a particular 
matter, they shall; 
 
a) disclose the interest and the general nature thereof, prior to any consideration of the matter at the 

meeting. 
 

b)  not take part in the discussion of, or vote on any question in respect of the matter. 
 

c) not attempt in any way to influence the voting or do anything which might be reasonably perceived 
as an attempt to influence other councillors or committee members or the decision relating to that 
matter. 
 

d) leave the meeting or the part of the meeting during which the matter is under consideration if the 
meeting is not open to the public. 

 
3) Where the interest of a member has not been disclosed as required by subsection (2) by reason of the 

member’s absence from the meeting referred to therein, the member shall disclose the interest and 
otherwise comply with subsection (2) at the first meeting of the Board attended by the member after the 
meeting referred to in subsection (2).   
 

4) At a meeting at which a member discloses an interest under section (2) or as soon as possible 
afterwards, the member shall file a written statement of the interest and its general nature to the Chair 
of the Board or affected committee. 

 
5) Where a member, either on their own behalf or while acting for, by, with or through another, has any 

pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in any matter that is being considered by the Board, shall not use 
their position in any way to attempt to influence any decision or recommendation that results from 
consideration of the matter. 

 

Page 113 of 139

Page 118 of 159



PAGE: 3 of 3 REFERENCE #: 02-05-015 
 
6) Where a Board or committee member believes that another member has a conflict of interest that has 

not been declared despite any appropriate informal communications, the first member shall advise an 
appropriate person such as the Chair of the Board or affected committee. 
 

7) Where a Board or committee member believes that another Board or committee member has acted in 
or is in an ongoing conflict of interest, they shall advise in writing an appropriate person such as Chair 
of the Board or affected committee. 

 
8) In situations where a Board member declares a perceived conflict of interest, the Board will determine 

by majority vote whether the member(s) participate in the discussion and vote on the item. The minutes 
should reflect the discussion and the Board decision on the matter. Alternately the Board member may 
decide on their own accord to not participate in the discussion and to not vote on the agenda item in 
question. 
 

9) Prior to seeking employment with programs administered by the Board, the member shall provide a letter 
of resignation; however, the member may seek re-appointment if not successful in the job competition. 

10) Where a conflict of interest is discovered during or after consideration of a matter, it is to be declared to  
the Board at the earliest opportunity and recorded in the minutes. 
 

11) If the Board determines that the involvement of the member declaring the conflict influenced the decision        
on the matter, the Board shall re-examine the matter and may rescind, vary, or confirm its decision. Any 
action taken by the Board shall be recorded in the minutes. 

 
12) Where there has been a failure on the part of a Board member to comply with this policy unless the  

failure is the result of a bona fide error in judgement as determined by the Board; the Board shall request 
that the Chair; 
 

i) issue a verbal reprimand; or 
ii) issue a written reprimand; or  
iii) request that the Board member resign or seek dismissal of the Board member based on 

regulations relevant as to how the Board member was appointed. 
 
 

Page 114 of 139

Page 119 of 159



 
PAGE: 1 of 1 REFERENCE #: 02-05-035 

 

Algoma Public Health – Policies and Procedures Manual – Board Policies and Bylaws 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE #: 02-05-035 
    
DATE: Original: Jan 20, 2010 SECTION: Policies 
 Reviewed: Jun 17, 2014   
 Revised: May 25, 2016   
 Revised: Nov 28, 2018 

Reviewed: Sep 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Continuing Education for 

Board Members 
    

 

POLICY: 

Algoma Public Health encourages and supports Board Members to attend and participate in training, 
workshops, seminars, meetings, and conferences related to public health and governance issues. 
 
The Medical Officer of Health / Chief Executive Officer shall bring programs, seminars or conferences 
relevant to the work of the Board to the attention of the Board. Board members may also identify learning 
and development opportunities designed to enhance their competence and knowledge throughout their 
mandate. These may include seminars or workshops sponsored by other community service groups or 
those sponsored by health associations or government departments. 

Board members shall receive approval by the Chair of the Board to attend as a representative of the board 
and to receive financial support for expenses and remuneration. The Chair of the Board shall receive 
approval from First Chair.  If they are not available, then the Second Chair will give approval. The member 
shall submit a brief written report to the Board highlighting the information/knowledge/skills presented. 
 
Board Members, approved by the Board Chair for a professional development activity, shall be reimbursed 
for all expenses incurred as per policy 02-05-025 Board Member Remuneration.  

Page 115 of 139

Page 120 of 159



PAGE: 1 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-080 
 

Algoma Public Health –Policies and Procedure Manual – Board Policies and Bylaws 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE #: 02-05-080 
    
DATE: Original: Mar 28, 2018 SECTION: Policies 
 Revised: Sep 23, 2020   
  SUBJECT: Performance Evaluation for 

Medical Officer Of Health/Chief 
Executive Officer (MOH/CEO) 

    

POLICY: 
 
A written performance evaluation system will be used to provide an objective and uniform way to evaluate 
the Medical Officer of Health/Chief Executive Officer (MOH/CEO’s) performance. It is a constructive 
process to build on strengths, correct weaknesses, and maximize performance. 
  
The MOH/CEO’s performance is to be evaluated before the end of the probationary period, in order to 
recommend to the Board of Health (BOH) appointment to regular appointment status, extension of the 
probationary period, or termination of employment.  
 
At the beginning of each year, the Board Chair (Chair) will meet with the MOH/CEO to set and review 
annual work plan, which includes professional development goals.  
 
A standing committee of the BOH named The MOH/CEO Performance Evaluation Committee (MOHPEC) 
will conduct the performance evaluation of the MOH/CEO. MOHPEC is made up of the current Chair and 
Vice-Chairs. The MOHPEC will conduct the performance evaluation of the MOH/CEO. The Director of 
Human Resources will assist with the evaluation process. The performance evaluation will be conducted by 
MOHPEC chaired by the Chair annually for two (2) years and every two (2) years thereafter.   MOHPEC 
will incorporate feedback from internal stakeholders such as Board of health members, staff and, where 
appropriate external stakeholders, as part of the 360° component of the evaluation. 
 
As part of the performance evaluation, the MOH/CEO is responsible for completing a self-appraisal 
assessment.  
 
Formal performance evaluations do not take the place of ongoing evaluation and feedback. If the 
MOH/CEO’s work is not adequate, the matter is to be dealt with while details and facts are fresh and will 
not wait for the formal review. The MOH/CEO’s performance must return to the required standard within a 
specified time period, or further action may be taken by the Board.  

 
PROCEDURES  
  
1. Annually, the Chair of the BOH will meet with the MOH/CEO to review the annual work plan, which 

includes the setting of professional development goals/objectives.  
 
2. The Chair will schedule the performance evaluation before the end of the probationary period and then 

annually for two (2) years and every two (2) years thereafter. 

3. The Director of Human Resources will send out the evaluation form to MOHPEC, and they will 
complete and return to the Director of Human Resources for collation. MOHPEC can consult with any 
other persons they feel could provide relevant input to the performance evaluation, review the job 
description, operational plans, significant events and any other pertinent items from the period under 
review. 

Page 116 of 139

Page 121 of 159



PAGE: 2 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-080 
 
 
4. The Director of Human Resources will send the MOH/CEO a self-evaluation form to be completed 

before the meeting with the Chair.  The self-evaluation is not to be submitted. 
 
5. The Chair will work with the Director of Human Resources to organize the 360⁰ component of the 

evaluation. This would include a list of staff and external stakeholders, when warranted, who could be 
approached for potential feedback. 

 
6. The Director of Human Resources will schedule a meeting with the Chair and Vice-Chairs to review 

responses obtained and prepares the draft form.  The information collected from the various sources 
will be used to grade each factor to complete the evaluation form, using the definitions included in the 
performance evaluation form and support the decision with comments and examples wherever 
possible.  The evaluation should also include an assessment of performance relative to any learning or 
performance objectives set in the previous performance evaluation. In the BOH’s comments clearly 
indicate whether the overall performance is satisfactory or not. For probationary, MOH/CEOs indicate if 
probation has been completed satisfactorily.  

 
7. The Chair will present the performance evaluation to the BOH at the next BOH meeting in-camera 

session.  The MOH/CEO is not present for this part of the meeting.  BOH members may alter provide 
input to the draft evaluation. 

 
8. The Director of Human Resources schedules a meeting(s) with the Chair and the MOH/CEO to discuss 

the evaluation.  This part may require more than one meeting. When weighing all of the feedback, 
consideration should be given to the MOH/CEO’s input and make changes/additions to the factor 
comments, examples and even grading where warranted. 

 
9. The Chair will forward the draft evaluation form to the Director of Human Resources to update the form 

with changes.  The Director of Human Resources will send the final copy to the Chair.    
 
10. The Chair and MOH/CEO meet to sign and date the performance evaluation form. The MOH/CEO’s 

signature means that they have read and understood the review. 
 
11. The Chair will provide the MOH/CEO with a copy of the completed performance evaluation form. The 

Director of Human Resources is to retain the original in the MOH/CEO’s personnel file. 
 
12. A follow up meeting(s) may be scheduled should the Chair deem it necessary. 
 
 

Page 117 of 139

Page 122 of 159



PAGE: 1 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-086 
 

Algoma Public Health – Policies and Procedures Manual – Board Policies and Bylaws 
 
APPROVED BY: Board of Health REFERENCE #: 02-05-086 
    
DATE: Original: Nov 28, 2018 SECTION: Policies 
 Revised: Sep 23, 2020   
  SUBJECT: Sponsorship of Charitable 

Organizations 
    

 
PURPOSE 

To identify appropriate participation of APH employees with respect to charitable 
activities/events which the agency may support and the process by which this participation is 
carried out. This policy does not apply to collaborative project work for which the agency has 
an ongoing relationship with another organization to deliver programs or services consistent 
with the direction of the OPHS or to activities that employees may engage in outside of the 
terms of their employment. 

BACKGROUND 

The delivery of our mandated core public health programs may directly or indirectly support 
charitable organizations. Participation in community events, which may include fundraising, is 
beneficial for employee engagement for our collaborative partnerships and for the communities 
that we support. 

However, the MOHLTC policy directs that health units may not redirect Ministry funds to 
charitable causes.1   This includes direct donation of a monetary nature, supply of goods and 
services or human resources ( employee time during work hours).  

 
POLICY STATEMENT 

APH supports community partners and other charitable organizations in their efforts to improve 
the health of the community through fundraising and special promotion events.  Occasionally, 
staff at the Health Unit will become actively involved in such events or initiatives. Activities 
should align with effective public health practice. The appropriateness of the APH’s active 
involvement with the event shall be determined by the senior management team when there is 
a potential human resource or financial commitment.   

The following guidelines will assist in determining the suitability and extent of such activities: 

• Activities closely align with public and population health goals.  
• Activities and funds remain in Algoma or Northern Ontario. 
• That use of APH infrastructure/ facilities does not incur additional cost to the agency. 

(e.g. use of parking lot, meeting rooms, kitchen facilities) 
• Activities do not disrupt or reduce routine APH program activities. 
• Activities do not display favouritism to a group/team merely because a member of that 

group is an APH employee (e.g. hosting club meetings) 

Page 118 of 139

Page 123 of 159



PAGE: 2 of 2 REFERENCE #: 02-05-086 
 

Any activities that involve direct sponsorship with a private/for-profit corporation will be 
reviewed with the Board of Health. 

 

REFERENCES 

1. 2017 Program-Based Grants User Guide, Population and Public Health Division Ministry of 
Health and Long-Term Care January 2017, Non-Admissible Expenditures, Page 9 

 

Page 119 of 139

Page 124 of 159



Serving the residents of Curve Lake and Hiawatha First Nations, and the County and City of Peterborough 

Jackson Square, 185 King Street, Peterborough, ON K9J 2R8 
P: 705-743-1000 or 1-877-743-0101 

F: 705-743-2897 
peterboroughpublichealth.ca 

 

June 25, 2020 
 
The Right Honourable Justin Trudeau, P.C., MP 
Prime Minister of Canada 
Office of the Prime Minister 
80 Wellington Street 
Ottawa, ON K1A 0A2 
justin.trudeau@parl.gc.ca 
 
The Honourable Chrystia Freeland, P.C., M.P. 
Deputy Prime Minister 
Privy Council Office 
Room 1000 
80 Sparks Street 
Ottawa, ON K1A 0A3 
chrystia.freeland@parl.gc.ca 
 
The Honourable Bill Morneau, P.C., M.P. 
Minister of Finance 
90 Elgin Street, 17th Floor 
Ottawa, ON K1A 0G5 
bill.morneau@parl.gc.ca 
 
Dear Prime Minister, Deputy Prime Minister and Minister Morneau:  
 
Subject: Endorsement of the letter from Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit, Basic Income for Income Security during 
COVID-19 Pandemic and Beyond 
 
I am writing on behalf of the Board of Health for Peterborough Public Health to express support for recommendations 
from the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit (SMDHU) Board of Health, for the “evolution of the Canada Emergency 
Response Benefit (CERB) into a basic income for all Canadians, during the COVID-19 pandemic and beyond.”  
 
As mentioned in the letter endorsed by SMDHU, from the Ontario Dietitians in Public Health, there is a lack of evidence 
that charitable food distribution systems can lower household food insecurity rates. Basic income is an evidence-based 
strategy to address poverty and household food insecurity in Canada. 
 
Poverty and household food insecurity are severe problems in Peterborough. For example, half of single mothers in 
Peterborough are food insecure, worrying about running out of money for food.1 Also, many residents have little income 
left over after paying rent: Peterborough has the highest percentage of renting households with unaffordable shelter 
costs in Canada, and over half of local renters are housing insecure.2 There are also significant income challenges faced 
by rural communities, including those in the Peterborough County. Of note, net farm incomes in Ontario were almost 
50% lower in 2019 when compared to 2017, highlighting risk of poverty for farmers.3 
 
 
 

Page 120 of 139

Page 125 of 159

mailto:justin.trudeau@parl.gc.ca
mailto:chrystia.freeland@parl.gc.ca
mailto:bill.morneau@parl.gc.ca
https://www.odph.ca/what-can-you-do


Serving the residents of Curve Lake and Hiawatha First Nations, and the County and City of Peterborough 

 
 
During the COVID-19 pandemic and beyond, local residents and all Canadians require adequate incomes to meet basic 
needs and live with dignity. Basic income is a strategy that has been shown to facilitate critical outcomes including 
housing stability, household food security, and improved physical and mental health. Basic income would also allow for 
flexibility of Canadians to meet needs in ways that are reflective of their cultures and traditions. A basic income is what 
our country needs to address impacts of COVID-19 and other adversity we will face, to allow for an equitable, healthy, 
and resilient future.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Original signed by 
 
Mayor Andy Mitchell 
Chair, Board of Health  
 
/ag 
Encl. 
 
cc: Local MPs 

Opposition Critics 
The Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
The Ontario Public Health Association 
Ontario Boards of Health 

1 Peterborough Public Health. (2019). Limited Incomes Report: No Money for Food is Cent$less. Retrieved from: 
https://www.peterboroughpublichealth.ca/reports-and-data/ 
2 United Way Peterborough and District. (2019). Housing is Fundamental. Retrieved from https://www.uwpeterborough.ca/housing-
is-fundamental/ 
3 Statistics Canada. (2020). Net Farm Income (x1000).  Retrieved from 
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/t1/tbl1/en/tv.action?pid=3210005201 
 

                                                           

Page 121 of 139

Page 126 of 159

https://www.peterboroughpublichealth.ca/reports-and-data/
https://www.uwpeterborough.ca/housing-is-fundamental/
https://www.uwpeterborough.ca/housing-is-fundamental/
https://www150.statcan.gc.ca/t1/tbl1/en/tv.action?pid=3210005201


 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head Office: 
169 Pine Street South 
Postal Bag 2012 
Timmins, ON   P4N 8B7 
 
Phone: 705 267 1181 
Fax: 705 264 3980 
Toll Free: 800 461 1818 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E-mail: 
info4you@porcupinehu.on.ca 
Web site: www.porcupinehu.on.ca 
 
Branch Offices: Cochrane, Hearst, 
Hornepayne, Iroquois Falls, 
Kapuskasing, Matheson,  
Moosonee, Smooth Rock Falls 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
June 29, 2020 

 

 

The Right Honourable Justin Trudeau, P.C., M.P. 

Prime Minister of Canada 

Office of the Prime Minister 

80 Wellington Street 

Ottawa, ON   K1A 0A2 

 

The Honourable Chrystia Freeland, P.C., M.P. 

Deputy Prime Minister 

Privy Council Office 

Room 1000 

80 Sparks Street 

Ottawa, ON   K1A 0A3 

 

The Honourable Bill Morneau, P.C., M.P. 

Minister of Finance 

90 Elgin Street, 17th Floor 

Ottawa, ON   K1A 0G5 

 

Dear Prime Minister Trudeau, Deputy Prime Minister Freeland and Minister 

Morneau:  

 

Subject: Basic Income for Income Security during COVID-19 Pandemic and 

Beyond 

 

The Board of Health for the Porcupine Health Unit strongly supports a basic 

income for all Canadians to ensure everyone has a sufficient income to meet 

their basic needs.  As such, the Board of Health endorses the enclosed 

correspondence to the federal government from Simcoe Muskoka District 

Health Unit, dated May 20, 2020, Timiskaming Health Unit, dated June 9, 

2020, the Ontario Dietitians in Public Health, dated May 9, 2020 and 

Canada’s Senate, dated April 21, 2020.  These letters request that the federal 

government change the Canada Emergency Response Benefit (CERB) into a 

basic income for all Canadians, during the COVID-19 pandemic and beyond. 

 

The measures taken during COVID-19 to support Canadians are an important 

opportunity to address the economic disparities that impact health. Income 

insecurity impacts the health of the population. This includes housing 

instability, food security, poorer physical and mental health outcomes as well 

as chronic health conditions. Food insecurity is an important public health 

issue in the Porcupine Health Unit (PHU) area.  The PHU is located in 

Northeastern Ontario and serves communities in the Cochrane District as well 

as Hornepayne, in Algoma District. Geographically, the PHU is the largest of 

the 34 health units in Ontario. As the most sparsely populated of all the health 

units, about one-third of the PHU area is rural. There are many demographic 

and socioeconomic factors that make the PHU district unique in the province, 

including a higher Francophone and Indigenous population in addition to a 

higher unemployment rate, a higher percentage of those not completing high 

school and lower life expectancy.(1)  

. . 2 

 

 

 Page 122 of 139

Page 127 of 159

http://www.porcupinehu.on.ca/


2. 

 

Furthermore, access to affordable, nutritious foods is a challenge, especially in the smaller 

communities in the region.  Many of the communities only have one grocery store and some do 

not have a grocery store and must travel to other communities to purchase food.  The PHU has 

experienced a 10% increase in the cost of healthy food since 2015.  In 2019, the cost of the 

Nutritious Food Basket was approximately $25 higher per week than the Ontario provincial 

average.  When the cost of healthy eating is added to local rent rates and various income scenarios 

are compared, year after year this survey demonstrates that many residents in the PHU area living 

on a low income are unlikely to have sufficient income to purchase a basic healthy diet for 

themselves and their families.   

 

Food-insecure Canadians are much more likely than others to have serious physical and mental 

health problems(4), and they are less able to manage these conditions. Research shows that severe 

food insecurity can reduce a person’s life expectancy by 9 years, as well as pose a significant cost 

to our health care system.   

 

We strongly recommend your government take immediate action on developing the Canada 

Emergency Response Benefit into legislation for a basic income as an effective long-term response 

to the problems of income insecurity, poverty and household food insecurity, as well as a response 

to the economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
Sue Perras 

Board Chair, Porcupine Health Unit 

 

cc:  Hon., Doug Ford, The Premier of Ontario 
 Mr. Charlie Angus, MP – Timmins – James Bay 
 Ms. Carol Hughes, MP – Algoma – Manitoulin – Kapuskasing 
 Mr. Gilles Bisson, MPP – Timmins – James Bay 
 Mr. Guy Bourgouin, MPP – Mushkegowuk - James Bay 
 Municipal Councils 
 Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) 
 Ontario Boards of Health  
 Ontario Public Health Association 
 

 

 

1.  Porcupine Health Unit. Health Status Report 2020 (Draft); 2020 [cited 2020 May 29].  

 

2.  Tarasuk V, Mitchell A. (2020). Household food insecurity in Canada, 2017-18. Toronto: Research to identify 

policy options to reduce food insecurity (PROOF). Retrieved from https://proof.utoronto.ca/.  

3.  Mohammad Ferdosi, Tom McDowell, Wayne Lewchuk, Stephanie Ross. Southern Ontario’s Basic Income 

Experience [Internet]. 2020 [cited 2020 May 25]. Available from: 

https://labourstudies.mcmaster.ca/documents/southern-ontarios-basic-income-experience.pdf 

4.  Nutritious Food Basket [Internet]. [cited 2019 Mar 1]. Available from: http://www.porcupinehu.on.ca/en/your-

family/nutrition-food-basket/ 

 

Page 123 of 139

Page 128 of 159



1 
 

 

Renfrew County and District Health Unit 
"Optimal Health for All in Renfrew County and District" 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
July 16, 2020  
 
The Right Honourable Justin Trudeau, P.C., M.P. 
Prime Minister of Canada 
Office of the Prime Minister 
80 Wellington Street 
Ottawa, ON     K1A 0A2  
justin.trudeau@parl.gc.ca 
 
The Honourable Chrystia Freeland, P.C., M.P. 
Deputy Prime Minister 
Privy Council Office 
80 Sparks Street, Room 1000 
Ottawa, ON     K1A 0A3  
chrystia.freeland@parl.gc.ca 
 
The Honourable Bill Morneau, P.C., M.P. 
Minister of Finance  
90 Elgin Street, 17th Floor  
Ottawa, ON     K1A 0G5  
bill.morneau@parl.gc.ca 
 
Dear Prime Minister Trudeau, Deputy Prime Minister Freeland and Minister Morneau:  
 
Re: Basic Income for Income Security during Covid-19 Pandemic and Beyond 
 
On June 30, 2020, at the Regular Board meeting for the Renfrew County and District 
Health Unit, the Board of Health approved a motion to endorse Timiskaming Health 
Unit’s letter of support for the attached correspondence of Simcoe Muskoka District 
Health Unit, dated May 20, 2020.  
 
Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit (SMDHU) called for the federal government to take 
 

 

Page 124 of 139

Page 129 of 159

mailto:justin.trudeau@parl.gc.ca
mailto:chrystia.freeland@par;.gc.ca
mailto:Bill.Morneau@parl.gc.ca


2 
 

 
 
 
swift and immediate action on the evolution of the CERB Benefit into legislation for a 
basic income as an effective long-term response to the problems of income insecurity,  
persistent poverty and household food insecurity, as well as a response to the 
economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Sincerely,  

 
Janice Visneskie Moore 
Chair, Board of Health 
 
 
Attachments 
 
c. Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario 

Dr. David Williams, Chief Medical Officer of Health 
Pegeen Walsh, Executive Director, Ontario Public Health Association 
Association of Local Public Health Agencies—Loretta Ryan  
Ontario Boards of Health 
Honourable John Yakabuski, M.P.P.—Renfrew-Nipissing-Pembroke  
Honourable Chery Gallant, M.P.—Renfrew-Nipissing-Pembroke  
Local Municipalities 
AMO/ROMA 

Page 125 of 139

Page 130 of 159



 

June 9, 2020 
 
The Right Honourable Justin Trudeau, P.C., MP  
Prime Minister of Canada  
Office of the Prime Minister  
80 Wellington Street  
Ottawa, ON K1A 0A2 
 
The Honourable Chrystia Freeland, P.C., M.P.  
Deputy Prime Minister  
Privy Council Office  
Room 1000  
80 Sparks Street  
Ottawa, ON K1A 0A3 
 
The Honourable Bill Morneau, P.C., M.P.  
Minister of Finance  
90 Elgin Street, 17th Floor  
Ottawa, ON K1A 0G5 
 
Dear Prime Minister Trudeau, Deputy Prime Minister Freeland and Minister Morneau: 
 
Re:  Basic Income for Income Security during Covid-19 Pandemic and Beyond 
 
On June 3, 2020, at a regular meeting of the Board for the Timiskaming Health Unit, the Board supported the 
enclosed correspondence of Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit, dated May 20, 2020 and passed the 
following motion: 
 
MOTION #26R-2020 
Moved by:  Kim Gauthier  
Seconded by:  Patrick Kiely  
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Health endorses the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit (SMDHU) call for 
the federal government to ‘take swift and immediate action on the evolution of the CERB Benefit into 
legislation for a basic income as an effective long-term response to the problems of income insecurity, 
persistent poverty and household food insecurity, as well as a response to the economic impact of the 
COVID-19 pandemic’; AND  
FURTHER THAT Prime Minister Trudeau, Deputy Prime Minister Freeland and Minister Morneau, 
Timiskaming’s MPs, MPPs and Chief Medical Officer of Health, and all Ontario boards of health are so 
advised.  

CARRIED 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Carman Kidd, Board of Health Chair 
 

Page 126 of 139

Page 131 of 159



 
Enclosure  
 
cc Mr. John Vanthof, MPP - Timiskaming-Cochrane 

Mr. Anthony Rota, MP – Timiskaming-Nipissing 
Dr. David Williams, Chief Medical Officer of Health 
Mrs. Loretta Ryan, Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
Ontario Boards of Health 
Ms. Pegeen Walsh, Executive Director, Ontario Public Health Association 
Mr. Doug Jelly, Chairman of District of Timiskaming Social Services Administration Board  
 

Page 127 of 139

Page 132 of 159



May 20, 2020 

The Right Honourable Justin Trudeau, P.C., MP 
Prime Minister of Canada 
Office of the Prime Minister 
80 Wellington Street 
Ottawa, ON K1A 0A2 

The Honourable Chrystia Freeland, P.C., M.P. 
Deputy Prime Minister 
Privy Council Office 
Room 1000 
80 Sparks Street 
Ottawa, ON K1A 0A3 

The Honourable Bill Morneau, P.C., M.P. 
Minister of Finance 
90 Elgin Street, 17th Floor 
Ottawa, ON K1A 0G5 

Dear Prime Minister Trudeau, Deputy Prime Minister Freeland and Minister Morneau: 

Re: Basic Income for Income Security during Covid-19 Pandemic and Beyond 

On behalf of the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit (SMDHU) Board of Health, I am writing to 
convey our strong support for the evolution of the Canada Emergency Response Benefit 
(CERB) into a basic income for all Canadians, during the COVID-19 pandemic and beyond. 

While we commend the federal government for the economic measures that have been put into 
place to support Canadians during this unprecedented time of the COVID-19 pandemic, we also 
know that many are falling through the cracks. Measures such as the CERB, the Canada 
Emergency Student Benefit (CESB) and the Canada Emergency Wage Subsidy (CEWS), 
though necessary and very important, have left many Canadians, who do not qualify for or not 
able to access these programs, vulnerable to household food insecurity and the negative 
consequences of income insecurity and poverty such as inadequate or unstable housing, and 
poorer mental and physical health, including chronic diseases. A basic income would address 
these gaps, offering support to the most vulnerable Canadians.  

Before the COVID-19 pandemic, many Canadians were already experiencing household food 
insecurity. In 2017-18 approximately 4.4-million (1 in 8) Canadians reported being food 
insecure, including 1.2 million children under the age of 18.i  As a result of COVID-19, this 
number is predicted to increase as many individuals are facing precarious employment, have 
had their hours reduced or have lost their jobs altogether. Many are relying on food banks and 
other charitable programs, however, this only meets the need on a temporary basis and is not a 
long term solution.   

Page 128 of 139

Page 133 of 159



 
Examples of key Canadian initiatives that demonstrate the positive impact of basic income-like 
programs on health and well-being include the Old Age Security and Guaranteed Income 
Supplement through Canada’s public pension system, the Canada Child Benefit, and the 
Newfoundland Poverty Reduction Strategy.  
 
Basic income pilots for working-age adults in Canada have also led to promising findings, 
including the Mincome pilot in Manitoba and the recent Ontario Basic Income Pilot. The 
research study, Southern Ontario’s Basic Income Experience released in March 2020, is based 
on Ontario’s pilot. This pilot was implemented in three Ontario cities in 2018 by the provincial 
government, and the project was terminated in 2019 following a change in government. While 
the formal pilot evaluation was cancelled, this research study made use of surveys of individuals 
from Hamilton, Brantford and Brant County who had been enrolled in the pilot (217 individuals 
participated out of 1000 enrolled households), and interviews with 40 participants. Some of the 
key findings cited by participants in this report include improvements in physical and mental 
health; increased labour market participation; moving to higher paying and more secure jobs; 
reduced household food insecurity; housing stability; improved financial status and social 
relationships; less frequent visits to health practitioners and hospital emergency rooms; 
improved living standards; and an improved sense of self-worth and hope for a better future.   
 
Additional evidence supporting the potential of a basic income for reducing the prevalence and 
severity of household food insecurity is presented in: Implications of a Basic Income Guarantee 
for Household Food Insecurity, a research paper prepared for the Northern Policy Institute 
based on the Ontario Basic Income Pilot.  
 
Moving forward during and following the COVID-19 pandemic is an opportune time for the 
federal government to take action to evolve the CERB into a basic income. This would provide 
income security to all Canadians during the economic challenges of the pandemic itself, the 
post-pandemic recovery, and into the future. This is particularly pertinent given the dramatic 
shifts in the labour market in recent decades, such that full-time permanent employment is no 
longer the norm. The current CERB has helped demonstrate the logistical feasibility of 
delivering a basic income, and it could be readily evolved into an ongoing basic income for 
anyone who falls below a certain income floor.  There is evidence of growing support for this 
concept, as outlined in Appendix A. The Basic Income Canada Network has outlined key 
features of basic income design for Canada, which we support. 
 
The SMDHU has been a strong proponent of basic income repeatedly since 2015. This includes 
having sponsored a resolution at the Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) 
general meeting endorsing the concept of basic income and requesting the federal and 
provincial governments jointly consider and investigate a basic income policy option for reducing 
poverty and income insecurity (2015), and expressing support and input into the Ontario Basic 
Income Pilot (2017). SMDHU has also been encouraging advocacy for income solutions to 
household food insecurity through our No Money for Food is Cent$less initiative since 2017. 
 
In keeping with this, we strongly recommend your government take swift and immediate action 
on the evolution of the CERB Benefit into legislation for a basic income as an effective long-term 

Page 129 of 139

Page 134 of 159



response to the problems of income insecurity, persistent poverty and household food 
insecurity, as well as a response to the economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
ORIGINAL Signed By: 
 
Anita Dubeau 
Chair, Board of Health 
 
AD:CS:cm 
 
Encl. (1) 
 
cc. Hon. Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario  

Simcoe and Muskoka MPs and MPPs 
Simcoe Muskoka Municipal Councils 
Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
Ontario Public Health Association 
Ontario Boards of Health 
 

Page 130 of 139

Page 135 of 159



Appendix A: Examples of Support for Basic Income in Response to COVID-19 and 
Beyond 

On April 21, 2020, 50 members of Canada’s Senate wrote a letter to the federal government 
calling for a restructuring of the CERB into a minimum basic income to “ensure greater social 
and economic equity”, especially for those who are most vulnerable. In support of this letter, 
Senator McPhedran’s Youth Advisory Council, the Canadian Council of Young Feminists, in 
collaboration with the Basic Income Canada Youth Network, sent their own letter to the federal 
government.  
 
In our region, Simcoe North MP Bruce Stanton has expressed agreement that it’s time to 
consider basic income. He is quoted as saying “Based on my reading of this, like Senator 
Boniface, I am persuaded that it could be very good public policy” (News Story). 
 
The Ontario Dietitians’ of Public Health (ODPH) have also written a letter to the federal 
government stating “We ask that you take immediate action to enact legislation for a basic 
income guarantee as an effective long-term response to the problem of persistent poverty and 
household food insecurity as well as shorter-term consequences of the economic fallout of the 
COVID-19 pandemic”.  
 
The Board of Health of the Kingston, Frontenac, Lennox and Addington Health Unit in Ontario 
also passed a motion requesting the federal government to provide a basic income support to 
all Canadians (News Story). 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 131 of 139

Page 136 of 159



www.ckpublichealth.com 

Municipality of Chatham-Kent 
CK Public Health 
PO Box 1136, 435 Grand Avenue West, Chatham, ON  N7M 5L8 
Tel: 519.352.7270    Fax: 519.352.2166 
Email ckpublichealth@chatham-kent.ca 

July 27, 2020 

The Right Honourable Justin Trudeau, P.C., MP 
Prime Minister of Canada 
Office of the Prime Minister 
80 Wellington Street Ottawa, ON K1A 0A2  
Sent via email: justin.trudeau@parl.gc.ca  

The Honourable Chrystia Freeland, P.C., M.P. 
Deputy Prime Minister  
Privy Council Office 
Room 1000  
80 Sparks Street Ottawa, ON K1A 0A3  
Sent via email: chrystia.freeland@parl.gc.ca  

The Honourable Bill Morneau, P.C., M.P. 
Minister of Finance 
90 Elgin Street, 17th Floor 
Ottawa, ON K1A 0G5 
Sent via email:  bill.morneau@parl.gc.ca  

Dear Prime Minister Trudeau, Deputy Prime Minister Freeland, and Minister Morneau: 

RE: Basic Income for Income Security during COVID-19 Pandemic and Beyond 

At its meeting held on June 17, 2020, the Chatham-Kent Board of Health received 
correspondence to the federal government from Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit, dated 
May 20, 2020, Timiskaming Health Unit, dated June 9, 2020, Haliburton, Kawartha, Pine Ridge 
District Health Unit, dated June 19, 2020. These letters request that the federal government 
transition the Canada Emergency Response Benefit (CERB) into a basic income for all 
Canadians during the COVID-19 response and beyond. The Board also endorses the May 11, 
2020 resolution by the City of Kitchener to establish a universal basic income. 

Income is one of the strongest predictors of health, and it makes sense that focusing on 
population health interventions to address socioeconomic factors will impact health outcomes 
far greater than individual focused interventions.  

…/2 

Page 132 of 139

Page 137 of 159

mailto:justin.trudeau@parl.gc.ca
mailto:chrystia.freeland@parl.gc.ca
mailto:bill.morneau@parl.gc.ca


Page 2 of 2 Basic Income for Income Security during COVID-19 Pandemic and Beyond 
July 27, 2020 

Previous to COVID-19, Chatham-Kent residents have experienced lower median household 
incomes, higher rates of poverty (with more than one in four children living in low income), lower 
rates of post-secondary education, higher proportions of the population working in lower wage 
manufacturing, retail, and service occupations, as well as higher rates of lone-parent families, 
seniors, and people living alone. Socio-economic factors vary across the Municipality with some 
communities and neighbourhoods facing a higher degree of material deprivation than others. An 
examination of local chronic disease health inequities has shown significantly higher rates of 
chronic disease-related health care utilization and death in the most materially deprived areas 
compared to the least deprived areas of Chatham-Kent. Annual analysis of the local cost of a 
nutritious food basket has continued to illustrate how little money a family of four on a social 
assistance budget would have left to cover the costs of childcare, rural transportation, and other 
basic needs, after paying for shelter and healthy food. Furthermore, the most recent calculation 
of Chatham-Kent’s living wage well exceeded $16 per hour, and local costs of living have 
increased since that time. 

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, we can anticipate the exacerbation of existing 
disparities, creating an even wider gap between those with opportunity and those without. Local 
concerns around homelessness, poverty, food insecurity, transportation, mental health and 
addictions, child and partner violence, and the needs of Indigenous people have been amplified. 

The Board strongly recommends your government take immediate action to evolve CERB into 
legislation for a basic income as an effective long-term response to the issues of income 
security, poverty, food insecurity, and overall community health and well-being. 

Sincerely, 

Joe Faas 
Chair, Chatham-Kent Board of Health 

C: Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario  
Dr. David Williams, Chief Medical Officer of Health  
Pegeen Walsh, Executive Director, Ontario Public Health Association 
Association of Local Public Health Agencies  
Ontario Boards of Health 
Honourable Dave Epp, MP, Chatham-Kent-Leamington 
Honourable Rick Nicholls, MPP, Chatham-Kent-Leamington 
Honourable Monte McNaughton, MPP, Lambton-Kent-Middlesex 
Chatham-Kent Municipal Council 

Page 133 of 139

Page 138 of 159



Page 134 of 139

Page 139 of 159



Page 135 of 139

Page 140 of 159



 

 

 
August 19, 2020 
 
The Honourable Christine Elliott  
Deputy Premier  
Minister of Health and Long-Term Care  
Hepburn Block  
80 Grosvenor Street, 10th Floor  
Toronto, ON M7A 2C4 
 
Dear Minister Elliott: 
 
On behalf of the Board of Health for the Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit I commend the 
provincial government for its leadership in bringing COVID-19 under control throughout Ontario. 
Through the definitive leadership of the provincial government, and with the concerted action 
of local public health units, Ontario has achieved a cumulative incidence of disease that is less 
than half of our neighbouring states, and a daily incidence at present that is less than 10% of 
theirs. The rapid action of the province putting in place public health measures in March, and 
their careful withdrawal since that time have been essential to our success. Also essential has 
been the redirection of almost all the resources within local health units to enable the timely 
identification of cases and their contacts for home isolation, management of outbreaks in 
workplaces, Long Term-Care facilities and retirement homes, and the provision of guidance and 
direction to municipalities, businesses, organizations and the general public supporting physical 
distancing, hand hygiene, and face coverings. All of these actions have enabled our communities 
to flatten the curve without which we would have had the same experience as our neighbouring 
jurisdictions to the south. 
 
Local public health units, with the leadership of their boards of health, are completely dedicated 
to the successful control of COVID-19 moving forward until our provision of mass vaccination 
and with it the hoped-for end to the pandemic. If necessary, we will continue this struggle for 
years.  
 
In order to continue to be successful, additional resources are needed, and the promise of 
additional resources by the province has been very much appreciated. This includes the $100 
million to public health communicated earlier in the year (the COVID-19 Extraordinary 
Expenses), and recently the $50 million (500 nurses) for the public health support to the 
recommencement of the schools (the School-Focused Nurses).  
 
This additional funding will be essential to enable the success of the local public health response 
to the pandemic; however, its timely provision is also critical to our success. Through 
communication with Ministry of Health staff we have learned that the COVID-19 Extraordinary 
Expenses will be provided late in 2020 as reimbursement for extraordinary expenditures related 
to the pandemic response. This approach requires boards of health to take on these 
expenditures throughout the year without certainty as to the actual amount that they will be 
reimbursed. Some boards do not have reserve funds, and others have depleted their reserves 

Page 136 of 139

Page 141 of 159



  

already in their response (including our Board of Health). Without the provision of the funds at 
this time, these boards will not be able to maintain the level of their response needed to fully 
control COVID-19. In addition, the boards have been instructed to proceed with hiring the 
additional School-Focused Nurses without having the additional funding at this time required to 
do so; those boards that do not have remaining reserve funds will not be in a position to do so 
until they receive these additional funds.  
 
Local public health has performed extraordinary work with the province to flatten the curve, 
and to enable the opening of the economy and soon the school system. This is a critical time for 
us all as we strive to maintain these achievements while avoiding a resurgence of cases that 
would threaten these gains. Therefore, the Board of Health urges the immediate provision of 
the funding allocations to local boards of health regarding the COVID-19 Extraordinary Expenses 
and for the School-Focused Nurses in order to enable a response by local public health units that 
is unobstructed by local financial shortfalls.  
 
Thank you for your consideration of this request, and for your exemplary leadership.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
ORIGINAL Signed By: 
 
Anita Dubeau, Chair 
Simcoe Muskoka District Health Unit Board of Health 
 
AD:CG:cm 
 
cc.  Dr. David Williams, Chief Medical Officer of Health 
 Loretta Ryan, Executive Director, Association of Local Public Health Agencies 
 Ontario Boards of Health 

Mayor and Council of Simcoe and Muskoka 
Members of Provincial Parliament for Simcoe and Muskoka 

  
 
 

Page 137 of 139

Page 142 of 159



480 University Ave., Suite 300 
Toronto, Ontario  M5G 1V2 

Tel: (416) 595-0006 
E-mail: info@alphaweb.org 

 

www.alphaweb.org Providing Leadership in Public Health Management 

alPHa’s members are 
the public health units 
in Ontario. 
 

alPHa Sections: 

Boards of Health 
Section 

Council of Ontario 
Medical Officers of 
Health (COMOH) 
 

Affiliate 
Organizations: 

Association of Ontario 
Public Health Business 
Administrators 

Association of  
Public Health 
Epidemiologists  
in Ontario  

Association of 
Supervisors of Public 
Health Inspectors of 
Ontario 

Health Promotion 
Ontario  

Ontario Association of 
Public Health Dentistry  

Ontario Association of 
Public Health Nursing 
Leaders 

Ontario Dietitians in 
Public Health 

 

 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Hon. Patty Hajdu                 July 9, 2020 
Minister of Health 
House of Commons  
Ottawa, Ontario, K1A 0A6 
 
Dear Minister Hajdu,  
 
Re: Protecting Children and Youth from Dangers of Vaping 
 
On behalf of the Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) and its member 
Medical Officers of Health, Boards of Health and Affiliate organizations, I am writing 
today to congratulate you for introducing further regulatory restrictions on the 
promotion of vapour products and to encourage you to move forward on the further 
regulatory measures under consideration.  
 
As you noted in your announcement, the evidence demonstrates that the increase in the 
rate of vaping in Canada has been driven almost entirely by youth and young adults, and 
it is reasonable to conclude that the aggressive promotion of and easy access to these 
devices in the absence of strong regulations were contributing factors.  
 
We are pleased that the Government of Canada has recognized that swift action on 
promotion and display are key interventions to stem the alarming uptake of vaping by 
young Canadians and we wholeheartedly support the new measures that ban advertising 
of vaping products in any situation where it can be seen or heard by young people. 
 
We are also pleased to learn that Health Canada is considering additional regulatory 
measures that would further restrict the nicotine content and available flavours of 
vaping liquids as well as require manufacturers to disclose more information about their 
products. Each of these measures was recommended in the January 22, 2020 Statement 
on Nicotine Vaping in Canada by Canada’s Council of Chief Medical Officers of Health, 
which concluded that it would be reasonable from a health protection and promotion 
perspective to regulate vaping devices as analogous to tobacco products. alPHa has 
endorsed this Statement in full and we strongly encourage you to follow through on each 
of the recommendations directed at the federal level.  
 
Once again, we are grateful for the regulatory amendments that will be taking effect in 
the coming months and we look forward to working with you as further steps to protect 
Canada’s young people from the harms of vapour products are considered. We would be 
pleased to discuss this with you further. To schedule a meeting, please have your staff 
contact Loretta Ryan, Executive Director, alPHa, at loretta@alphaweb.org or 416-595-
0006 x 222.  
 
Yours sincerely, 

 
Carmen McGregor 
alPHa President 
 
 

Page 138 of 139

Page 143 of 159

https://www.canada.ca/en/public-health/news/2020/01/statement-from-the-council-of-chief-medical-officers-of-health-on-nicotine-vaping-in-canada.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/public-health/news/2020/01/statement-from-the-council-of-chief-medical-officers-of-health-on-nicotine-vaping-in-canada.html


COPY: Hon. Christine Elliott, Minister of Health (Ontario) 
Dr. David Williams, Chief Medical Officer of Health 
Dianne Alexander, Director, Health Promotion and Prevention Policy and Programs Branch, 
Ministry of Health 

 
 

The Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) is a not-for-profit organization that provides 
leadership to the boards of health and public health units in Ontario. alPHa advises and lends 
expertise to members on the governance, administration and management of health units. The 
Association also collaborates with governments and other health organizations, advocating for a 
strong, effective and efficient public health system in the province. Through policy analysis, 
discussion, collaboration, and advocacy, alPHa’s members and staff act to promote public health 
policies that form a strong foundation for the improvement of health promotion and protection, 
disease prevention and surveillance services in all of Ontario’s communities.   

 

Page 139 of 139

Page 144 of 159



1

Rachel Tyczinski

From: AMO Communications <Communicate@amo.on.ca>
Sent: Wednesday, September 23, 2020 6:31 PM
To: Rachel Tyczinski
Subject: AMO Update: 2020 Federal Throne Speech Lays Out Priorities Including Climate 

Action, Expanding Rural Broadband, Improved Housing Access, Child Care and Long-
Term Care Standards

This email originated outside of the Corporation of the City of Sault Ste. Marie. 
Do not open attachments or click links unless you verify the sender and know the content is safe. 

AMO Update not displaying correctly? View the online version  
Add Communicate@amo.on.ca to your safe list 

 

September 23, 2020 

AMO Update: 
2020 Federal Throne Speech Lays Out Priorities 

Including Climate Action, Expanding Rural 
Broadband, Improved Housing Access, Child Care 

and Long-Term Care Standards 

Her Excellency, Governor General Julie Payette, delivered the Trudeau government’s 
Speech From The Throne today in the Senate. Throne Speeches lay out broad 
directions and priorities the government proposes to implement through legislation, 
policy, spending and other actions during the coming Parliamentary session. Prime 
Minister Trudeau will address Canadians regarding the priorities in the Speech later 
this evening. 

The federal government is in a minority government situation and a Throne Speech 
requires the confidence of the House of Commons. This means that the government 
will require the support of opposition members to pass the Speech. The government 
and opposition parties will now be assessing the ability to pass the Speech. 

Headline Speech commitments include expanding COVID-19 testing capacity to 
reduce delays; targeted financial support in the event of future localized lockdowns; 
and creation of 1 million jobs. 

Significant commitments of interest to Ontario municipal governments include: 

Page 145 of 159

mailto:Communicate@amo.on.ca
mailto:Communicate@amo.on.ca


2

 Keeping the Canada Emergency Response Benefit (CERB) into 2021 and 
changing Employment Insurance in the long-term to include gig workers, the 
self-employed; 

 Keeping supports such as the Canada Employment Wage Subsidy (CEWS) 
and the creation of a new disability benefit; 

 Investments in infrastructure such as public transit and active transportation; 
flooding and fire prevention; clean energy and building energy efficiency 
upgrade supports; affordable housing and reduction of homelessness – 
including recent initiatives for rapid housing; 

 Rural broadband expansion through “accelerating the timelines and ambitions” 
of the Universal Broadband Fund; 

 Action on long-term care with national standards, supports for ageing in place 
and “Criminal Code amendments to explicitly penalize those who neglect 
seniors under their care;” 

 Investing in a childcare and early learning system as well as creating a strategy 
for women in the economy; 

 Banning single use plastics next year and improving recycling as well as 
creating a Canadian Clean Water Agency; 

 Modernizing the Environmental Protection Act and legislating the goal of net-
zero energy emissions by 2030 as well as expanding electric vehicle charging; 
and 

 Targeted support for travel and tourism, cultural and performing arts, and 
hospitality industries that have been hardest hit from the pandemic.  

Of specific interest to municipal governments, the Speech promised action to continue 
municipal ability to ban handguns; expanding urban parks and access to greenspace 
and changes to improve civilian oversight of policing including the RCMP as part of its 
priority to reduce systemic racism. 

Many of the items included in the speech were proposed by AMO to the federal and 
provincial government as investments that could help communities recover from the 
economic fall out of the pandemic. Municipal officials are encouraged to watch or read 
the Throne Speech to assess items of interest for their own communities. AMO will 
continue to analyze the Speech and monitor the progress of commitments made 
within it and report to members on relevant developments. 

AMO Contact: 

Craig Reid, Senior Advisor, creid@amo.on.ca, 647-200-7189. 
  

*Disclaimer: The Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) is unable to provide any warranty regarding the accuracy or completeness 
of third-party submissions. Distribution of these items does not imply an endorsement of the views, information or services mentioned. 

  
 

Page 146 of 159

mailto:creid@amo.on.ca,


1

Rachel Tyczinski

From: AMO Communications <Communicate@amo.on.ca>
Sent: Tuesday, September 29, 2020 4:50 PM
To: Rachel Tyczinski
Subject: AMO Policy Update – New Long-Term Care Funding, Measures, Community 

Paramedicine to Address COVID-19

This email originated outside of the Corporation of the City of Sault Ste. Marie. 
Do not open attachments or click links unless you verify the sender and know the content is safe. 

AMO Update not displaying correctly? View the online version  
Add Communicate@amo.on.ca to your safe list 

 

September 29, 2020 

AMO Policy Update – New Long-Term Care Funding, 
Measures, and Community Paramedicine to Address 

COVID-19 

 
Today the government announced new investments of close to $540 million for long-
term care as part of the government’s COVID-19 Fall Preparedness Plan.  The 
funding is intended to help protect residents, caregivers, and staff in long-term care 
homes from future surges and waves of COVID-19.  It will be spent on necessary 
renovations and measures to improve infection prevention and control, increasing 
personal protective equipment (PPE) stockpiles, and building a strong health care 
workforce. 

These investments include a new investment of $2.8 million to extend the High Wage 
Transition Fund to ensure that gaps in long-term care staffing can continue to be 
addressed during the pandemic. The government has also committed to work with 
municipal partners to use community paramedics to help people on the long-term care 
waitlist stay in their own homes longer. This is part of their work to look at innovative 
solutions to provide more care where and when people need it. 

The full list of new provincial investments includes: 

 $405 million to help homes with operating pressures related to COVID-19  
 $61.4 million for minor capital repairs and renovations in homes to improve 

infection prevention and control  

Page 147 of 159

mailto:Communicate@amo.on.ca
mailto:Communicate@amo.on.ca


2

 $40 million to support homes that have been impacted by the changes in 
occupancy numbers due to COVID-19  

 $30 million to allow long-term care homes to hire more infection prevention and 
control staffing, including $20 million for additional personnel and $10 million to 
fund training for new and existing staff  

 $2.8 million to extend the High Wage Transition Fund to ensure that gaps in 
long-term care staffing can continue to be addressed during the pandemic  

 providing all long-term care homes with access to up to eight weeks of supply 
of PPE so they are prepared in case of outbreaks  

 working with municipal partners to use community paramedics to help people 
on the long-term care waitlist stay in their own homes longer.  

Finally, the government is also revising visitor policies to prevent the spread of 
infection in long-term care homes.  Effective Monday, October 5, 2020, visitors to 
long-term care homes in these areas will be restricted to staff and essential visitors 
only, which includes essential caregivers. 

 
AMO’s COVID-19 Resources page is being updated continually so you can find critical 
information in one place.  Please send any of your municipally related pandemic 
questions to covid19@amo.on.ca. 
  

*Disclaimer: The Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) is unable to provide any warranty regarding the accuracy or completeness 
of third-party submissions. Distribution of these items does not imply an endorsement of the views, information or services mentioned. 

  
 

  

Please consider the environment 
before printing this. 

 

Association of Municipalities of Ontario
200 University Ave. Suite 801,Toronto ON Canada M5H 3C6

Wish to Adjust your AMO Communication Preferences ? Click Here

  

 

 

 

Page 148 of 159

mailto:covid19@amo.on.ca.


1

Rachel Tyczinski

From: AMO Communications <Communicate@amo.on.ca>
Sent: Wednesday, September 30, 2020 4:16 PM
To: Rachel Tyczinski
Subject: AMO Policy Update – COVID-19 Fall Plan, COVID-19 Modelling, Social Assistance 

Recovery/Renewal Plan, Food/Organic Waste Policy Statement, Pre-Budget 
Submissions

This email originated outside of the Corporation of the City of Sault Ste. Marie. 
Do not open attachments or click links unless you verify the sender and know the content is safe. 

AMO Update not displaying correctly? View the online version  
Add Communicate@amo.on.ca to your safe list 

 

September 30, 2020 

AMO Policy Update – COVID-19 Fall Plan, COVID-19 
Modelling, Social Assistance Recovery & Renewal 
Plan, Food & Organic Waste Policy Statement, and 

Pre-Budget Submissions 

 
Provincial COVID-19 Fall Plan 

The Ontario government has released their $2.8 billion COVID-19 fall preparedness 
plan to make sure that the Province's health care, long-term care, and education 
systems are prepared for the immediate challenges of the fall, including a second 
wave of COVID-19 and the upcoming flu season.  The full provincial plan Keeping 
Ontarians Safe: Preparing for Future Waves of COVID-19 was developed by the 
Province to quickly identify, prevent, and respond to surges and waves of the virus to 
protect the health and safety of all Ontarians. 

 
COVID-19 Modelling 

The Province has released its updated COVID-19 modelling today which confirms that 
the Province is experiencing a second wave in cases similar to what other jurisdictions 
have experienced.  This updated model provides the public with some powerful 

Page 149 of 159

mailto:Communicate@amo.on.ca
mailto:Communicate@amo.on.ca


2

information about the potential health consequences if we are not all collectively 
following the well-known public health measures. 

 
Social Assistance Recovery & Renewal Plan 

The government has now announced their plan for social assistance recovery and 
renewal, as part of the effort to support employment and economic recovery from the 
COVID-19 emergency.  It will change the way that both municipally administered 
Ontario Works and the provincial Ontario Disability Support Programs are delivered 
and structured.  There are no indications that it will increase municipal costs.  A 
primary goal is to redirect human resources from doing administration to providing 
more frontline service to clients. 

The first recovery phase will be rolled out in the coming months.  The focus will be on 
improved access to employment and training services, developing new digital tools 
and modern service options, and ways to process financial assistance faster. 

Moving beyond recovery into renewal, a new provincial-municipal transformation 
vision will be developed collaboratively.  The government is committing to a co-design 
process with municipal governments and District Social Service Administration Boards 
that administer and co-fund social assistance. 

 
Provincial Food and Organic Waste Policy Statement Amendments 

This morning, Minister Yurek announced proposed changes to the Food and Organic 
Waste Policy Statement.  A number of amendments are proposed including: 

 clarifying and expanding the materials collected in municipal source separated 
organics programs,  

 improving tracking and reporting of organic waste diversion or reduction efforts, 
and  

 clarifying that efforts to meet targets apply past 2025.  

Most notable is the strengthened direction (from ‘encouraged’ to ‘should’) related to 
the need for municipal and Industrial, Commercial, and Institutional (ICI) source 
separated organic programs to accept compostable products, packages, and offerings 
such as coffee pods at organic processing facilities.  The Minister was clear in his 
comments at the press conference that the government was not making this 
mandatory (i.e. ‘shall’) but this would be considered in future years.  The proposal is 
posted on the Environmental Registry for a 45-day consultation period.  AMO will be 
providing comments on behalf of our members. 

In our view, it is critical that producers of these materials be made fully responsible for 
their management at end-of-life, which AMO has advocated for in the new Packaging, 
Paper and Packaging-Like Products (Blue Box) Regulation.  

Page 150 of 159



3

 
Provincial Pre-Budget Submission Process and Deadline 

Here is the official process link for submissions to inform the provincial budget which 
legislatively must be tabled by November 15th.  The deadline for submissions is 
October 15th. 

 
AMO’s COVID-19 Resources page is being updated continually so you can find critical 
information in one place.  Please send any of your municipally related pandemic 
questions to covid19@amo.on.ca. 
  

*Disclaimer: The Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) is unable to provide any warranty regarding the accuracy or completeness 
of third-party submissions. Distribution of these items does not imply an endorsement of the views, information or services mentioned. 

  
 

  

Please consider the environment 
before printing this. 

 

Association of Municipalities of Ontario
200 University Ave. Suite 801,Toronto ON Canada M5H 3C6

Wish to Adjust your AMO Communication Preferences ? Click Here

  

 

 

 

Page 151 of 159

mailto:covid19@amo.on.ca.


MOTION 
 

 
 

 
Subject:  Starlink Program 

File No.   

 

Moved by Councillor:   

Seconded by Councillor:   

WHEREAS community social and economic well-being is dependent on fast, reliable, and 
affordable broadband connectivity and better cellular coverage;  

AND WHEREAS Municipal, Provincial and Federal Governments as well as healthcare, education 
and other sectors will continue to depend on the internet to communicate, provide services and 
ensure accessibility to information;  

AND WHEREAS digital literacy skills are essential to collaborate, innovate, and compete both 
regionally and globally and require appropriate and affordable broadband;  

AND WHEREAS the availability of broadband that is on par with larger, urban areas in Canada is 
essential for Northern Ontario to achieve economic sustainability and social well-being;  

AND WHEREAS in 2016 the Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities (FONOM) requests that 
the internet be designated as an essential service and those efforts are undertaken to ensure all 
municipalities have access to affordable, fast, and reliable broadband;  

AND WHEREAS the Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities (FONOM) agreed that an option 
to explore and hopefully support would be the Starlink Program, by SpaceX. 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the ___________ agrees that that Broadband is an essential 
service, and that the Canadian Radio-television and Telecommunications Commission (CRTC) 
should allow SpaceX and other private ventures to compete with those presently acting in the 
communication field, as they have the private financial ability to move forward. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT a copy of this resolution be sent to the Federal Minister of 
Science, Innovation, and Economic Development, the Provincial Minister of Economic 
Development, Employment and Infrastructure, the Provincial Minister of Northern Development 
and Mines, the Canadian Radio-television Telecommunications Commission (CRTC), Northeastern 
MPs and MPPs, the Leaders of the Opposition Parties, and the Federation of Northern Ontario 
Municipalities. 

 

Carried  Carried as amended  Lost  
 
 

Conflict  Endorsement of 

Chair  

 

Yeas      Nays    

        

        

         

 

Record of Vote (Upon Request of Councillor  ___) 

 
Signature of Clerk _______ 

 

W:\CLERK\MOTIONS\2020 MOTIONS\MOTION - Starlight Program (Sept 29).docx 

 

Page 152 of 159



MOTION 
 

 

Page 153 of 159



 
 
 
 
 
 

Assessment Review Board - Board of Nego iation - Conservation Review Board - Environmental Review Tribunal - Local Planning Appeal Tribunal 
Mining and Lands Tribunal - Niagara Escarpment Hearing Office - Office of Consolidated Hearings 

 

 

Ontario Land Tribunals  Tribunaux de l'aménagement du 
territoire Ontario 

 

Local Planning Appeal Tribunal 
 

Tribunal d’appel de l’aménagement 
local 
 

655 Bay Street, Suite 1500 
Toronto ON  M5G 1E5 

655 rue Bay, suite 1500 
Toronto ON  M5G 1E5 

Telephone: 
Toll Free: 
Website: 

(416) 212-6349 
1-866-448-2248  
www.elto.gov.on.ca 

Téléphone: 
Sans Frais: 
Site Web: 

(416) 212-6349 
1-866-448-2248  
www.elto.gov.on.ca 

 
PROCEEDING COMMENCED UNDER subsection 17(24) of the Planning Act, 
R.S.O. 1990, c. P.13, as amended 

Appellant: Mary Loretta Harrison 
Appellant: Lynden Pond 
Subject: Proposed Official Plan Amendment No. OPA 226 
Municipality:  City of Sault Ste. Marie 
LPAT Case No.:  PL200122 
LPAT File No.:  PL200122 
LPAT Case Name:  Harrison v. Sault Ste. Marie (City) 

 
 
PROCEEDING COMMENCED UNDER subsection 34(19) of the Planning Act, 
R.S.O. 1990, c. P.13, as amended 

Appellant: Mary Loretta Harrison 
Appellant: Lynden Pond 
Subject:  By-law No. BL 2020-31 
Municipality:  City of Sault Ste. Marie 
LPAT Case No.:  PL200122 
LPAT File No.:  PL200123 

 
 

NOTICE OF CASE MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE BY VIDEO 
 
The Local Planning Appeal Tribunal (“Tribunal”) will conduct a Case Management 
Conference (“CMC”) by video for this matter. 
 
This CMC will be held: 
 
 AT: 10:30AM  
 

ON: Thursday, October 22, 2020 
 

AT: o   
  

 
The Tribunal has set aside 1 day for this CMC. 

Page 154 of 159



CLC REPCLC REPORT TO  ORT TO  
LABOUR COLABOUR COUNCUNCILSILS
SEPTEMBER 2020SEPTEMBER 2020

CLC
Ontario
Region

To mark Labour Day, Canada’s unions are 
calling on all levels of government to focus 
on investments and community supports 
to help restart our economies and protect 
Canadians.
Forward Together: A Canadian Plan is a 
new campaign centred on ensuring that 
Canada is ready to disaster-proof our 
nation so that no one is left behind when crisis hits. The 
campaign will roll out digitally on various social media 
platforms and will encourage Canadians to engage with 
their elected representatives on key issues.
“There are important lessons to be learned from this 
pandemic and we have a real opportunity to strengthen 
our communities and to better protect one another,” said 
Hassan Yussuff, CLC President. “We have been able to 
withstand this pandemic by supporting each other, and 
that is the only way to move forward.”
Learning from the chaos seen in the United States, 
Canada’s unions will be pushing for a plan that focuses 
on:
• Replacing lost jobs with better ones
• Strengthening Canadian public health care
• Disaster-proofing our social safety net
“We need the government to reject calls for austerity 
and make real investments in our future. The only way 
to fix what’s broken is to invest,” said Yussuff. “Workers 
are key to the recovery. The federal government can 

help alleviate a lot of 
anxiety by investing 
in jobs, making long-
term care part of public 
health care, supporting a 
child care strategy, and 
implementing national 
pharmacare.”
Canada’s unions are 
looking for targeted 

investments in green infrastructure, education and 
training, and care work.
“A strong economy is inextricably linked with strong 
social services that support workers and their families 
through bad times,” said Yussuff. “The United States is 
showing us what happens when we act like everyone is 
in it for themselves. We can and must do better.”
A strong economy is inextricably linked with strong 
social services that support workers and their families 
through bad times,” said Yussuff. “The United States is 
showing us what happens when we act like everyone is 
in it for themselves. We can and must do better.

The Canadian Labour Congress (CLC) 
welcomes today’s federal government 
announcement that it will extend the 
Canada Emergency Response Benefit 
(CERB), introduce much needed reforms to 
Employment Insurance (EI) to provide better 
protections for the country’s unemployed 
workers including the introduction of a 

minimum floor on benefits, and provide 10 paid sick days.
Millions of people have been relying on the CERB for 
financial support 
after losing their 
jobs because of the 
pandemic. The benefit 
was set to terminate 
but will now be 
extended for another 
month.
In the meantime, the 
temporary changes to EI will support those who still need 
help once the CERB expires and who wouldn’t otherwise be 
eligible under previous rules.
“Prime Minister Justin Trudeau and Employment Minister 
Carla Qualtrough are clearly listening to the palpable fears 
of unemployed workers and are ensuring support for the 
hardest hit. Today’s extension of the CERB and the various 
changes to EI are going to provide a lifeline for people 
who are worried about how they will make ends meet,” said 
CLC President, Hassan Yussuff. “As much as people want 
to get back to work, many jobs are still not there. Today’s 
announcement will be a huge relief for workers and their 
families who deserve to live in dignity.”
Today’s reforms include:
• a new stand-alone unemployment benefit of $400 for 

contract, self-employed, freelance and gig-economy 
workers that is modelled on CERB, and outside EI;

• a rule that effectively lowers the eligibility threshold 
for maternity/parental benefits from 600 hours to 120 
hours of insurable earnings;

• a two-week flat-rate paid sick leave benefit.
“Canada’s unions have long called for paid sick leave. 
With this new benefit, workers can return to work with 
confidence knowing they can take time off without fear of 
lost pay or of losing their job,” says Yussuff.
“Today’s temporary reforms should help set the stage 
for a future permanent overhaul of EI that has been long 
overdue. That overhaul should include changes that would 
see employers who currently avoid paying EI premiums 
by claiming their workers are independent contractors be 
compelled to pay into EI programs.”

Page 155 of 159



For details and take action, visit:For details and take action, visit:
    https://canadianplan.cahttps://canadianplan.ca

Page 156 of 159

https://canadianplan.ca/disaster-proof-canada/


2020 ITUC Global Rights Index: violations of workers’ rights at seven-year high
The breakdown of the social contract has been exposed 
in the 2020 ITUC Global Rights Index with violations of 
workers’ rights at a seven-year high.

This trend, by governments and employers, to restrict the 
rights of workers through limiting collective bargaining, 
disrupting the right to strike, and excluding workers from 
unions, has been made worse by a rise in the number of 
countries that impede the registration of unions.

An increase in the number of countries that deny or 
constrain freedom of speech shows the fragility of 
democracies while the number of countries restricting 
access to justice has remained unacceptably high at last 
year’s levels.

A new trend identified in 2020 shows a number of scandals 
over government surveillance of trade union leaders in 
an attempt to instill fear and put pressure on independent 
unions and their members.

The General Secretary of the ITUC, Sharan Burrow, said: 
“These threats to workers, our economies and democracy 
were endemic in workplaces and countries before the 
Covid-19 pandemic disrupted lives and livelihoods. In 
many countries, the existing repression of unions and the 
refusal of governments to respect rights and engage in 
social dialogue has exposed workers to illness and death 
and left countries unable to fight the pandemic effectively.

“As we look towards the recovery and build resilient 
economies, the 2020 ITUC Global Rights Index is a 
benchmark against which we will hold governments and 
employers to account.

“If the findings of the Rights Index are not shocking 
enough, we are already seeing some countries take 
things further. Under the cover of measures to tackle 
the coronavirus pandemic, they are advancing their 
anti-workers’-rights agenda. This has got to stop and be 
reversed.

“The Global Rights Index exposes a breakdown in the 
social contract that governments and employers have with 
working people. There’s a trend to restrict working rights 
through violations of collective bargaining, withholding 
the right to strike and excluding workers from unions.

“But the Rights Index is not just a list of violations. It is 
a stark picture of the rights deficits we need to address 

as we build the new economic model the world needs 
as it recovers from the Covid-19 pandemic. It must be a 
resilient global 
economy 
built on a 
New Social 
Contract: a new 
commitment 
to workers’ 
rights, renewed 
investment in 
compliance 
and the rule 
of law, and a 
foundation of workplace democracy.”

The Middle East and North Africa is the worst region in 
the world for working people, for seven years running, due 
to the ongoing insecurity and conflict in Palestine, Syria, 
Yemen and Libya, coupled with the most regressive region 
for workers’ representation and union rights.

The ten worst countries for working people in 2020 are 
Bangladesh, Brazil, Colombia, Egypt, Honduras, India, 
Kazakhstan, the Philippines, Turkey and Zimbabwe.

The seventh edition of the ITUC Global Rights Index 
ranks 144 countries on the degree of respect for workers’ 
rights. Key findings include:

 ► 85 per cent of countries violated the right to strike.
 ► 80 per cent of countries violated the right to 

collectively bargain.
 ► The number of countries that impeded the registration 

of unions has increased.
 ► Three new countries entered the list of ten worst 

countries for workers (Egypt, Honduras, India)
 ► The number of countries that denied or constrained 

freedom of speech increased from 54 in 2019 to 56 in 
2020.

 ► Workers were exposed to violence in 51 countries.
 ► Workers had no or restricted access to justice in 72 per 

cent of countries.
 ► Workers experienced arbitrary arrests and detention 

in 61 countries.

The Canadian Labour Congress 
created the Carol McGregor award 
to recognize the outstanding 
contributions of a worker with a 
disability who has made a significant 
and lasting impact in their union and/
or the community by promoting and 

defending the rights of persons with disabilities. Nominations 
are once again open for the Carol McGregor CLC Disability 
Rights Award.

Attached is the nomination form, which we encourage you to 
distribute widely and consider nominating an activist from 
your affiliate. The form is also available on the CLC website, 
linked here. Any union member or organization may nominate 

a candidate, and is  encouraged  to spread the word and send in 
your nomination.
All nominations must be received by the deadline, October 30, 
2020. Complete nominations must be submitted via email to 
human-rights@clcctc.ca. 
In the middle of a global health crisis, many trade unionists 
have worked tirelessly to ensure that persons with disabilities 
are not left behind. The Carol McGregor award is an important 
opportunity to recognize this kind of dedication and 
leadership of disability rights activists within our movement 
who have worked hard to raise these issues and ensure they 
remain a priority. Let us celebrate how unions promote 
fairness for workers with disabilities by recognizing the 
outstanding contribution of our activists.

Call for Nominations – The Carol McGregor CLC Disability Rights Award

Page 157 of 159

http://documents.clcctc.ca/whr/Disab-Rights/NominationForm-Fillable-2020-09-08-EN.pdf
https://canadianlabour.ca/carol-mcgregor-clc-disability-rights-award/
mailto:human-rights%40clcctc.ca?subject=


Congratulations to all Ontario Labour Councils for organizing interesting, creative Congratulations to all Ontario Labour Councils for organizing interesting, creative 
and impactful events for the Labour Dayand impactful events for the Labour Day

Barrie and District Labour Council
Sunset Drive-In - FREE for the first 152 cars - must pre-
register. 

Chatham-Kent District Labour Council
Car Caravan, social media - Chatham City Hall. 

Cornwall and District Labour Council
CLC Campaign on social media and Nationbuilder.

Durham Region Labour Council
Virtual Labour Day Celebration on Zoom and 
Facebook Live, Virtual Screening of CBC Documentary 
“Company Town” - CLC Campaign on social media and 
Nationbuilder.

Grey-Bruce Labour Council
Car Caravan in Meaford.

Guelph and District Labour Council
Car parade to celebrate Labour Day!

Hamilton and District Labour Council
Caravan & Starlite Drive in, Social Distance Picnic. CLC 
campaign on social media.

Huron and District Labour Council
Car Parade to deliver donation cheques to community 
Organizations, photo opportunity, Labour Day message 
advertisement in the local newspaper.

Kingston and District Labour Council
Car and Bicycle Caravan – Special KDLC radio show, with 
local labour leaders, music, and special guests.

Leeds-Grenville and District Labour Council
Car Caravan.

Lindsay and District Labour Council
Pre-recorded video presentation on Facebook page. CLC 
campaign on social media.

London and District Labour Council and St. Thomas and 
District Labour Council
Car Rally -- Social media awareness campaign. The 
campaign gained worldwide recognition as a place for 
First Responders to share ideas, resources, and photos of 
support for one another.

Niagara & Regional Labour Council
Pre-recorded video presentation on Facebook page. CLC 
campaign on social media and website.

North Bay and District Labour Council
Radio and online paid adverts, and feature video. Lawn 
signs.  Donations and contributions to area foodbanks.

North Simcoe Muskoka and District Labour Council
Online Video Celebration on NSMDLC Facebook Page, 
Twitter Account, and Website. Video released on Labour 
Day.

Northumberland and District Labour Council
Car Caravan, Sidewalk Art / Poster Contest, Video 
Message from President shared, CLC Campaign on Social 
Media.

Orangeville Labour Council
Electronic Bill Board on Highway 10 with a powerful 
Labour Day message.

Ottawa and District Labour Council
Virtual Zoom and Facebook Live Celebration, Virtual 
Screening of the Movie “Stand” , CLC Campaign on social 
media and Nationbuilder

Peel Regional Labour Council
Rolling Caravan from Mississauga to Brampton 

Peterborough District Labour Council
Facebook Live Virtual Event with music and notable 
speakers hosted by PDLC President. CLC Campaign on 
Social Media.

Quinte Labour Council
CLC Campaign on social media and Nationbuilder.

Renfrew and District Labour Council
CLC Campaign on social media.

Sarnia and District Labour Council
VIirtual Labour Day event , TVSN (The video show 
network) with Dave Burrows as host. 

Sault Ste. Marie and District Labour Council
Shared CLC materials.

St. Thomas District Labour Council
Joined with London Labour Council.  Details under 
London and District Labur Council.

Stratford and District Labour Council
Care-❤-van to salute frontline and essential workers. 

Sudbury and District Labour Council 
Car Parade – music, colouring contest and speeches. 
Lunches safely served. 

Thunder Bay and District Labour Council
Car Caravan and Drive Thru Ice Cream Station.

Toronto & York Region Labour Council
Labour Day launch of “A Just Recovery for All” campaign. 
Over 130 buses featured ad, each directly sponsored by 
an affiliate, and banners up on six highway bridges in 
Toronto. Digital ads, virtual parade on Facebook and 
YouTube featuring the diversity of Toronto and York 
Region’s labour movement.  

Waterloo Regional Labour Council
Labour Day Weekend Drive in Double Feature Drive-In 
Movie during the Labour Day weekend.

Windsor and District Labour Council
Windsor Star infomercial article (includes Directing 
readers to our Website & FB Link), broadcast on OurTV 
community station, honouring frontline workers, 
Children’s colouring and essays contests, WEBSITE & 
FB-Locals’ photos and Labour Day Message, Labour Day 
Speeches.

Page 158 of 159



t'

t: Lr : r \ i

' '..:"- \'
ri¡ -¡

LI\ NOGDAWINDAMINI
FAMILY AND COMMUNITY SERVICES

September I,2020

To Whom It May Concern,

On behalf of Nogdawindamin Family and Community Services, the Alternative Care Program is pleased to
announce thatthe Annuøl Alternative Care Appreciafion Event and Awards 2020 will be held virtually this
year on Saturday, October 24¡h,2020. This important event provides the opporhrnity to celebrate and honor
our Alternative Care Families who protect, nurture and guide our children.

Nogdawindamin Family and Community Services is always encouraging and continually looking for
families to open their homes for our children in need.

During these challenging times we understand the impact that COVID-I9 has had on businesses and
communities. Alternative Care Families have been committed to provide safe homes, care and support to our
most vulnerable in society and we would like to honour them for their ongoing commitment.

It is our hope that all of our Alternative Care Families will participate in this beneficial event and all receive
a small token of our gratitude for their dedication to our young people living in care. In order to complete
this dream, we are asking for a small donation of your choice, or if preferable, a monetary donation can be
made to Nogdawindamin Family and Community Services, which will be used to create basket(s) on your
behalf for our Alternative Care Families.

Please contact our Alternative Care Recruiter, Allison Johnson at705-971-1202,i|you are able to make a
donation. Thank you for your consideration.

We look forward to working with you to help build heølthy Anishnawbek families and communities.

Chi Miigwetch,

Alternative Care Team for
Nogdawindamin Family & Community Services

Batchewana First \ation o (larden l{iver First \ation . -Ihessalon First \ation
llississauga First \ation . Serpent Rjver Iirst \ation o Sagamok \nishnawbek o \tikamekshcng.\nishnawbek

- i.:-¡,-ì- -

., ì.iì,:t-i

Page 159 of 159


	Agenda
	1. APH Agenda 2020 09 23.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	1. APH Agenda Package 2020 09 23.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	2. AMO Update – September 23 2020.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	2. AMO Policy Update – September 29 2020.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	2. AMO Policy Update – September 30 2020.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	3. FONOM – Motion – Starlink Program.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4. LPAT Appeal 22 MacDonald Ave.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	5. CLC Report – September 2020.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6. Annual Alternative Care Appreciation Event.pdf
	Back to Agenda


